AGENDA OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE
OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
March 11, 2026
7:30 p.m.

This is a regular meeting of the Township of Mansfield Committee. This meeting is being held
in compliance with the “OPEN PUBLIC MEETINGS ACT", because adequate notice of this
meeting has been provided by notifying The Daily Record, and by posting notice of such meeting on the
Township Website and in the Municipal Building and by filing of said notice with the Township Clerk of the
Township of Mansfield. Formal action may be taken at this meeting.

THIS IS NOT AN OFFICIAL DOCUMENT. It is listed as a courtesy and attempt to inform the public of actions being considered by the
Township Committee of Mansfield Township. There may be additions or deletions prior to the Committee taking final action.

ROLL CALL.:
SALUTE TO FLAG & MOMENT OF SILENCE:

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES
Executive Session- February 25, 2026
Regular Session- February 25, 2026

CLERK’S REPORT
FINANCE REPORT
EMPLOYEES’ REPORTS
ENGINEER’S REPORT

PUBLIC PORTION

ORDINANCES: FIRST READING AND INTRODUCTION
#008-2026  Ordinance Of The Township Of Mansfield, County Of Warren, State Of New Jersey Amending
Land Use Legislation Chapter 361, “General Provisions”, to Regulate Indirect Heat Exchangers

Also Known as Wood Boilers Across All Township Zoning Districts

#009-2026  Ordinance of the Township of Mansfield, County of Warren, State of New Jersey Appropriating
$135,000 for the Purchase of Two Police Vehicles

ORDINANCES: SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING
#002-2026  Ordinance Of The Township Of Mansfield, County Of Warren, State Of New Jersey To Amend

Chapter 363 The Township Code Titled “Zoning”, Specifically, Article XV, Affordable Housing
Districts

#003-2026  Ordinance Of The Township Of Mansfield, County Of Warren, State Of New Jersey To Amend
Chapter 365 Of The Township Code Titled “Affordable Housing”

#004-2026  Ordinance Of The Township Of Mansfield, County Of Warren, State Of New Jersey Amending
And Supplementing Chapter 296 Of The Township Code Entitied Streets And Sidewalks, Most
Notably, Section 296-1, Entitled “Excavating Streets” And Section 296-6 Supervision

#005-2026  Ordinance Of The Township Of Mansfield, County Of Warren, State Of New Jersey Amending
And Supplementing Chapter 182 Of The Township Code Entitled Fees, Most Notably, Section

182-3, Entitled “Township Clerk”

RESOLUTIONS (taken separately)
#084-2026 Resolution Authorizing Payment of Municipal Obligations

PUBLIC PORTION — CONSENT AGENDA ONLY




CONSENT AGENDA

#085-2026  Resolution Authorizing Award of Contract for Mowing & Trimming Bid — Woodland Landscape
Group, LLC

#086-2025  Resolution Authorizing the Acceptance of Driveway Bonds

#087-2026  Resolution Authorizing Submission of Strategic Plan for Municipal Alliance — FY 2027

#088-2026  Resolution Authorizing Submission of Warren County Cuitural & Heritage Affairs Regular Mini
Grant Application

#089-2026  Resolution Authorizing Award of Contract for On Call Road Maintenance Services — Salmon
Bros.

#090-2026  Resolution Adopting Affordable Housing Affirmative Marketing Plan

#091-2026  Resolution Authorizing and Adopting Affordable Housing Administrative Agent Policies,
Affordability Assistance Policies, and Rental Housing Rehabilitation Program Procedures
Manuals

#092-2026  Resolution Authorizing Appointment of Municipal Housing Liaison — J.Fascenelli

#093-2026  Resolution Adopting Fourth Round Affordable Housing Trust Fund Spending Plan

NEW BUSINESS

COMMITTEE PERSON COMMENTS/REPORTS
Watters

Hayes

Mc Guinness

Connelly

Bollard

EXECUTIVE SESSION
#094-2026 Executive Session

RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION

ADJOURN



TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
COUNTY OF WARREN

ORDINANCE 002-2026

ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN,
STATE OF NEW JERSEY TO AMEND CHAPTER 363 THE TOWNSHIP CODE
TITLED “ZONING”, SPECIFICALLY, ARTICLE XV, AFFORDABLE HOUSING DISTRICTS

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE
The purpose of this Ordinance is amend Chapter 363 of the Township Code, Titled Zoning,
Specifically, Article XV, Affordable Housing Districts

WHEREAS, the Township of Mansfield (the “Township” or “Mansfield”) having filed a resolution of participation
in the Affordable Housing Dispute Resolution Program (the “Program”) and a declaratory judgment action on
January 24, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the Court entered an order on April 8, 2025 setting the Township’s Fourth Round fair share
obligations as a Present Need of 7 units and a Prospective Need of 355 units, which no party appealed, and
ordering the Township to file a Housing Element and Fair Share Plan (“HEFSP") by June 30, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the Township having filed its Adopted HEFSP on June 17, 2025; and

WHEREAS, FSHC having filed a letter pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:27D-304.1(f)(2)(b) regarding the Township's
Adopted HEFSP on August 31, 2025 seeking additional information and documentation before the HEFSP may

be approved by the Program and trial court; and

WHEREAS, FSHC and the Township having resolved the issues raised in the letter filed by FSHC and having
agreed upon the entry and form of a Consent Order in resolution of all issues raised in the aforesaid letter filed

by FSHC upon completion of all conditions; and

WHEREAS, the Settlement Agreement stipulates that the Township will rezone certain properties to provide
realistic opportunities for the creation of affordable housing; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Township of Mansfield, County of Warren, and
State of New Jersey, as follows: '

SECTION 1:

Chapter 363 of the Code of the Township of Mansfield is hereby amended as follows:
ARTICLE XV: Affordable Housing Districts

§363-87 Purpose

A. The AH-3 Zone District is intended to permit multi-family inclusionary housing on the “Allen Farm Site”,
known as Lot 9 in Block 1102. The AH-2 Zone permits multi-family inclusionary housing at a density of
10 dwellings per acre and a mandatory affordable housing set-aside of 15 percent in the case of rental
housing and 20 percent in the case of owner-occupied housing.

B. The AH-4 Zone District is intended to permit multi-family inclusionary housing on a portion of the
“Donaldson Farm Site”, known as Let5 Lots 5, 6 nd 8.01, and a ion of in Block 1105.10.
The AH-3 Zone permits multi-family inclusionary housing at a density of 10 dwellings per acre and a



mandatory affordable housing set-aside of 15 percent in the case of rental housing and 20 percent in the
case of owner-occupied housing.

§363-88 Permitted Uses

A

The AH-3 and AH-4 Zones are designed for multi-family residential uses. Garden apartments and
townhouses are permitted principal uses.

§363-89 Permitted Accessory Uses

o o

m

K.

L.

Street, roadways and driveways

Off-street surface parking and attached or detached garages

Sanitary Sewer Pump Stations

Stormwater Management Facilities

Site identification signs, in accordance with signs permitted in the R-3 District as per §363-21.
Trash enclosures

Site utilities

Temporary construction office and/or trailer for the duration of the construction of the project

Recreational facilities and uses including walking paths, recreational furniture, exercise facilities, tot lots,
and other recreational facilities typically associated with a multi-family residential development

Community mailboxes
Minor solar or photovoltaic energy facilities or structures, subject to the conditions at §363-33 A.

Other uses customarily incidental and accessory to a multi-family residential development

§363-89 Area and Bulk Requirements

A.

B.

C.

D.

All multi-family residential uses within the AH-3 and AH-4 Affordable Housing Districts shall meet the
area and bulk requirements for the applicable uses within the R-3 District, except as follows:

(1) Building coverage: 20 percent
(2) Site coverage: 50 percent

Maximum Density. 10 dwelling units per acre.

All multi-family dwellings shall comply with the Design and Performance Standards for Garden
Apartments and Townhouses, in accordance with Chapter 361, Article II.

Affordable Housing Units: The total number of affordable housing units that shall be constructed shall be

15 percept-of-the-total-pumberof-unit nd

housing regardless of tenure. All affordable housing units shall comply with the Township's Affordable




Housing Ordinance and the New Jersey Uniform Housing Affordability Controls (N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.1,

et seq,), including but not limited to phasing, bedroom distribution, and very low income requirements.

SECTION 2. Any article, section, paragraph, subsection, clause, or other provision of the Code of the Township
of Mansfield inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance is hereby repealed to the extent of such

inconsistency.

SECTION 3. If any section, paragraph, subsection, clause, or provision of this ordinance shall be adjudged by
a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such adjudication shall apply only to the section, paragraph,
subsection, clause, or provision so adjudged, and the remainder of this ordinance shall be deemed valid and

effective.

SECTION 4. This ordinance shall take effect as required by law.

ATTEST TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD

\w\_ \,\&)N\\‘b\(\ QX»M&J{ [J Fttﬁ"

Wendy Barras, T hip Municipal Clerk Hon Joseph Watters, Mayor




Motion: Introduce Ordinance Moved by: Hayes; Seconded by: Connelly
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=5)

Yes: Bollard, Connelly, Mc Guinness, Hayes, Watters

No:

Abstain:

Absent:

Introduced: February 11, 2026
Published: February 17, 2026
Public Hearing: March 11, 2026

Motion: Adopt Ordinance Moved by: . Seconded by:
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes:

No:

Abstain:

Absent:

Adopted:
Published:

CERTIFICATION

I, Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk of the Township of Mansfield, do hereby certify that the foregoing
Ordinance was duly adopted by the Township of Mansfield Committee on the day of , 2026.

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk



TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
COUNTY OF WARREN

ORDINANCE 003-2026

ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN,
STATE OF NEW JERSEY TO AMEND CHAPTER 365 OF THE TOWNSHIP
CODE TITLED “AFFORDABLE HOUSING”

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE
The purpose of this Ordinance is amend Chapter 365 of the Township Code, Titled, Affordable Housing

WHEREAS, the Township of Mansfield (the “Township” or “Mansfield”) having filed a resolution of
participation in the Affordable Housing Dispute Resolution Program (the “Program”) and a declaratory

judgment action on January 24, 2025; and

WHEREAS the Court entered an order on April 8, 2025 setting the Township’s Fourth Round fair share
obligations as a Present Need of 7 units and a Prospective Need of 355 units, which no party appealed,
and ordering the Township to file a Housing Element and Fair Share Plan (*HEFSP”) by June 30, 2025;

and

WHEREAS, the Township having filed its Adopted HEFSP on June 17, 2025; and

\WHEREAS, FSHC having filed a letter pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:27D-304.1(f)(2)(b) regarding the
Township’s Adopted HEFSP on August 31, 2025 seeking additional information and documentation
before the HEFSP may be approved by the Program and trial court; and

WHEREAS. FSHC and the Township having resoived the issues raised in the letter filed by FSHC and
having agreed upon the entry and form of a Consent Order in resolution of all issues raised in the
aforesaid letter filed by FSHC upon completion of all conditions; and

WHEREAS, the Township is required to update its Affordable Housing Ordinance, Development Fee
Ordinance, and Affirmative Marketing Plan, and other administrative documents in accordance with
N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.1, et seq. and N.J.A.C. 5:99 by March 15, 2026.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Township of Mansfield, County of
Warren, and State of New Jersey, as follows:

SECTION 1. The Code of the Township of Mansfield, Chapter 365, Affordable Housing, is hereby
repealed and replaced with the following:

365-1. Introduction & Applicability
A. This section of the Code sets forth regulations regarding the very low-, low- and moderate-

income housing units in the Township of Mansfield consistent with the provisions outlined in P.L
2024, Chapter 2, including the amended Fair Housing Act (‘FHA") at N.J.S.A. 52:27D-301 et
seq., as well as the Department of Community Affairs, Division of Local Planning Services
(“LPS”) at N.JA.C. 5:99 et seq., statutorily upheld existing regulations of the now-defunct
Council on Affordable Housing (“COAH") at N.J.A.C. 5:93 and 5:97, the Uniform Housing
Affordability Controls (‘UHAC”) at N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.1 et seq., and as reflected in the adopted
municipal Fourth Round Housing Element and Fair Share Plan (*HEFSP”).



B. This Ordinance is intended to ensure that very low-, low- and moderate-income units (“affordable
units”) are created with controls on affordability over time and that very low-, low- and moderate-
income households shall occupy these units pursuant to statutory requirements. This Ordinance
shall apply to all inclusionary developments, individual affordable units, and 100% affordable
housing developments except where inconsistent with applicable law. Low-Income Housing Tax
Credit financed developments shall adhere to the provisions set forth below in item 5.c. below.

C. The Township of Mansfield Planning Board has adopted a HEFSP pursuant to the Municipal
Land Use Law at N.J.S.A. 40:55D-1, et seq. The Fair Share Plan describes the ways the
municipality shall address its fair share of very low-, low- and moderate-income housing as
approved by the Superior Court and documented in the Housing Element.

D. This Ordinance implements and incorporates the relevant provisions of the HEFSP and
addresses the requirements of P.L 2024, Chapter 2, the FHA, N.J.A.C. 5:99, NJ Supreme Court
upheld COAH regulations at N.J.A.C. 5:93 and 5:97, and UHAC at N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.1, as may
be amended and supplemented.

E. Applicability

1. The provisions of this Ordinance shall apply to all affordable housing developments and
affordable housing units that currently exist and that are proposed to be created pursuant to
the municipality’s most recently adopted HEFSP.

2. This Ordinance shall apply to all developments that contain very low-, low- and moderate-
income housing units included in the Municipal HEFSP, including any unanticipated future
developments that will provide very low-, low- and moderate-income housing units.

3. Projects receiving federal Low Income Housing Tax Credit financing and are proposed for
credit shall comply with the low/moderate split and bedroom distribution requirements,
maximum initial rents and sales prices requirements, affirmative fair marketing requirements
of UHAC at N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.16 and the length of the affordability controls applicable to such
projects shall be not less than a 30-year compliance period plus a 15-year extended-use
period, for a total of not less than 45 years.

365-2. Definitions
As used herein the following terms shall have the following meanings:
“Accessory apartments” means a residential dwelling unit that provides complete independent
living facilities with a private entrance for one or more persons, consisting of provisions for living,
sleeping, eating, sanitation, and cooking, including a stove and refrigerator, and is located within a
proposed preexisting primary dwelling, within an existing or proposed structure that is an
accessory to a dwelling on the same lot, constructed in whole or part as an extension to a
proposed or existing primary dwelling, or constructed as a separate detached structure on the
same lot as the existing or proposed primary dwelling. Accessory apartments are also referred to

s “accessory dwelling units”.

“Act” means the New Jersey Fair Housing Act, N.J.S.A. 52:27D-301 et seq.

“Adaptable” means constructed in compliance with the technical design standards of the barrier
free subcode adopted by the Commissioner of Community Affairs pursuant to the

“State Uniform Construction Code Act,” P.L.1975, c. 217 (C.52:27D-119 et seq.) and in
accordance with the provisions of section 5 of P.L.2005, c. 350 (C.52:27D-123.195).



“Administrative agent” means the entity approved by the Division responsible for the
administration of affordable units, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 5:99-7, and UHAC at N.J.A.C. 5:80-

26.15.

“Affirmative marketing” means a regional marketing strategy designed to attract buyers and/or
renters of affordable units pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.16.

“Affirmative Marketing Plan” means the municipally adopted plan of strategies from which the
administrative agent will choose to implement as part of the Affirmative Marketing requirements.

“Affirmative Marketing Process” or “Program” means the actual undertaking of Affirmative
Marketing activities in furtherance of each project with very low- low- and moderate-income units.

“Affordability assistance” means the use of funds to render housing units more affordable to low-
and moderate-income households and includes, but is not limited to, down payment assistance,
security deposit assistance, low interest loans, rental assistance, assistance with homeowner’s
association or condominium fees and special assessments, common maintenance expenses, and
assistance with emergency repairs and rehabilitation to bring deed-restricted units up to code,
pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:99-2.5.

“Affordability average” means an average of the percentage of regional median income at which
restricted units in an affordable development are affordable to low- and moderate-income

households.

“Affordable” means, in the case of an ownership unit, that the sales price for the unit conforms to
the standards set forth at N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.7 and, in the case of a rental unit, that the rent for the
unit conforms to the standards set forth at N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.13.

“Affordable housing development” means a development included in a municipality’s housing
element and fair share plan, and includes, but is not limited to, an inclusionary development, a
municipally sponsored affordable housing project, or a 100 percent affordable development. This
includes developments with affordable units on-site, off-site, or provided as a payment in-lieu of
construction only if such a payment-in-lieu option has been previously approved by the Program
or Superior Court as part of the HEFSP. Payments in lieu of construction were invalidated per P.L.

2024, c.2.

“Affordable Housing Dispute Resolution Program” or “the Program” refers to the dispute resolution
program established pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:27D-313.2.

“Affordable Housing Monitoring System” or “AHMS” means the Department’s cloud-based
software application, which shall be the central repository for municipalities to use for reporting
detailed information regarding affordable housing developments, affordable housing unit
completions, and the collection and expenditures of funds deposited into the municipal affordable

housing trust fund.

“Affordable Housing Trust Fund” or “AHTF” means that non-lapsing, revolving trust fund
established in DCA pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:27D-320 and N.J.A.C. 5:43 to be the repository of all
State funds appropriated for affordable housing purposes. All references to the



“Neighborhood Preservation Nonlapsing Revolving Fund” and “Balanced Housing” mean the
AHTF.

“Affordable unit” means a housing unit proposed or developed pursuant to the Act, including units
created with municipal affordable housing trust funds.

“Age-restricted housing” means a housing unit that is designed to meet the needs of, and is
exclusively for, an age-restricted segment of the population such that: 1. All the residents of the
development where the unit is situated are 62 years or older; 2. At least 80 percent of the units are
occupied by one person that is 55 years or older; or 3. The development has been designated by
the Secretary of HUD as “housing for older persons” as defined in Section 807(b)(2) of the Fair
Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. § 3607.

“Agency” means the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency established by
P.L.1983, c. 530 (C.55:14K-1 et seq.).

“Assisted living residence” means a facility licensed by the New Jersey Department of Health to
provide apartment-style housing and congregate dining and to ensure that assisted living services
are available when needed for four or more adult persons unrelated to the proprietor. Apartment
units must offer, at a minimum, one unfurnished room, a private bathroom, a kitchenette, and a
lockable door on the unit entrance.

“Barrier-free escrow” means the holding of funds collected to adapt affordable unit entrances to be
accessible in accordance with N.J.S.A. 52:27D-311a et seq. Such funds shall be held in a
municipal affordable housing trust fund pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:99-2.6.

“Builder's remedy” means court-imposed site-specific relief for a litigant who seeks to build
affordable housing for which the court requires a municipality to utilize zoning techniques, such as
mandatory set-asides or density bonuses, including techniques which provide for the economic
viability of a residential development by including housing that is not for low- and moderate-
income households.

“Certified household” means a household that has been certified by an administrative agent as a
very-low-income household, a low-income household, or a moderate-income household.

“CHOICE” means the no-longer-active Choices in Homeownership Incentives for Everyone
Program, as it was authorized by the Agency.

“COAH’ or the “Council” means the Council on Affordable Housing established in, but not of, DCA
pursuant to the Act and that was abolished effective March 20, 2024, pursuant to section 3 at P.L.
2024, c. 2 (N.J.S.A. 52:27D-304.1).

“Commissioner” means the Commissioner of the Department of Community Affairs.

“Compliance certification” means the certification obtained by a municipality pursuant to section 3
of P.L.2024, c. 2 (C.52:27D-304.1), that protects the municipality from exclusionary zoning
litigation during the current round of present and prospective need and through July 1 of the year
the next round begins, which is also known as a “‘judgment of compliance” or “judgment of
repose.” The term “compliance certification” shall include a judgment of repose granted in an
action filed pursuant to section 13 of P.L.1985, c. 222 (C.52:27D-313).



“Construction” means new construction and additions, but does not include alterations,
reconstruction, renovations, conversion, relocation, or repairs, as those terms are defined in the
State Uniform Construction Code promulgated pursuant to the State Uniform Construction Code

Act, P.L. 1975 ¢. 217(N.J.S.A. 52:27D-119 et seq.).

“County-level housing judge” means a judge appointed pursuant to section 5 at P.L.2024,c. 2, to
resolve disputes over the compliance of municipal fair share affordable housing obligations and
municipal Fair Share plans and housing elements with the Act.

“DCA” and “Department” mean the State of New Jersey Department of Community Affairs.

“Deficient housing unit” means a housing unit with health and safety code violations that require
the repair or replacement of a major system. A major system includes weatherization, roofing,
plumbing (including wells), heating, electricity, sanitary plumbing (including septic systems), lead
paint abatement and/or load bearing structural systems.

“Department” means the New Jersey Department of Community Affairs.

“Developer” means the legal or beneficial owner or owners of a lot or of any land proposed to be
included in a proposed development, including the holder of an option or contract to purchase, or
other person having an enforceable proprietary interest in such land.

“Development” means the division of a parcel of land into two or more parcels, the construction,
reconstruction, conversion, structural alteration, relocation, or enlargement of any building or other
structure, or of any mining, excavation, or landfill, and any use or change in the use of any
building or other structure, or land or extension of use of land, for which permission may be
required pursuant to the Municipal Land Use Law, N.J.S.A. 40:55D-1 et seq.

“Development fee” means money paid by a developer for the improvement of residential and non-
residential property as permitted pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:27D-329.2 and 40:55D-8.1 through

40:55D-8.7 and N.J.A.C. 5:99-3.

“Dispute Resolution Program” means the Affordable Housing Dispute Resolution Program,
established pursuant to section 5 at P.L. 2024, c. 2 (N.J.S A. 52:27D-313.2).

“Division” means the Division of Local Planning Services within the Department of Community
Affairs.

“Emergent opportunity” means a circumstance that has arisen whereby affordable housing will be
able to be produced through a delivery mechanism not originally contemplated by or included in a
fair share plan that has been the subject of a compliance certification.

“Equalized assessed value” or “EAV” means the assessed value of a property divided by the
current average ratio of assessed to true value for the municipality in which the property is
situated, as determined in accordance with sections 1, 5, and 6 at P.L. 1973, c. 123 (N.J.S.A.
54:1-35a, 54:1-35b,and 54:1-35c¢). Estimates at the time of building permit may be obtained by the
tax assessor using construction cost estimates. Final EAV shall be determined at project
completion by the municipal assessor.



“Equity share amount” means the product of the price differential and the equity share, with the
equity share being the whole number of years that have elapsed since the last non-exempt sale of
a restricted ownership unit, divided by 100, except that the equity share may not be less than five
percent and may not exceed 30 percent.

“Exit sale” means the first authorized non-exempt sale of a restricted unit following the end of the
control period, which sale terminates the affordability controls on the unit.

“Exclusionary zoning litigation” means litigation challenging the fair share plan, housing element,
ordinances, or resolutions that implement the fair share plan or housing element of a municipality
based on alleged noncompliance with the Act or the Mount Laurel doctrine, which litigation shall

include, but shall not be limited to, litigation seeking a builder's remedy.

“Extension of expiring controls” means extending the deed restriction period on units where the
controls will expire in the current round of a housing obligation, so that the total years of a deed
restriction is at least 60 years.

“Fair share obligation” means the total of the present need and prospective need, including prior
rounds, as determined by the Affordable Housing Dispute Resolution Program, or a court of
competent jurisdiction.

“Fair share plan” means the plan or proposal, with accompanying ordinances and resolutions, by
which a municipality proposes to satisfy its constitutional obligation to create a realistic opportunity
to meet its fair share of low- and moderate-income housing needs of its region and which details
the affirmative measures the municipality proposes to undertake to achieve its fair share of low-
and moderate-income housing, as provided in the municipal housing element, and which
addresses the development regulations necessary to implement the housing element, including,
but not limited to, inclusionary requirements and development fees, and the elimination of
unnecessary housing cost-generating features from the municipal land use ordinances and

regulations.
“FHA” means the New Jersey Fair Housing Act, N.J.S.A. 5§2:27D-301 et seq.

“Green Building Strategies” means the strategies that minimize the impact of development on the
environment, and enhance the health, safety and well-being of residents by producing durable,
low-maintenance, resource-efficient housing while making optimum use of existing infrastructure
and community services.

“HMFA” or “the Agency” means the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency
established pursuant to P.L. 1983, c. 530 (N.J.S.A. 565:14K-1 et seq.).

“Household income” means a household’s gross annual income calculated in a manner consistent
with the determination of annual income pursuant to section 8 of the United States Housing Act of
1937 (Section 8), not in accordance with the determination of gross income for Federal income tax

liability.

“Housing element” means the portion of a municipality’s master plan adopted in accordance with

the Municipal Land Use Law (MLUL) at N.J.S.A. 40:55D-28.b(3) and the Act consisting of reports,
statements proposals, maps, diagrams, and text designed to meet the municipality’s fair share of
its region’s present and prospective housing needs, particularly with regard to low- and moderate-



income housing, which shall include the municipal present and prospective obligation for
affordable housing, determined pursuant to subsection f. at N.J.S.A. 52:27D-304.1.

“Housing region” means a geographic area established pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:27D-304.2b.

“Inclusionary development” means a residential housing development in which a substantial
percentage of the housing units are provided for a reasonable income range of low- and
moderate- income households.

“Judgment of compliance” or “judgment for repose” means a determination issued by the Superior
Court approving a municipality’s fair share plan to satisfy its affordable housing obligation for a
particular 10-year round.

“| ow-income household” means a household with a household income equal to 50 percent or less
of the regional median income.

“|_ow-income unit” means a restricted unit that is affordable to a low-income household.

“Major system” means the primary structural, mechanical, plumbing, electrical, fire protection, or
occupant service components of a building which include but are not limited to, weatherization,
roofing, plumbing (including wells), heating, electricity, sanitary plumbing (including septic
systems), lead paint abatement or load bearing structural systems.

“Mixed use development” means any development that includes both a non-residential
development component and a residential development component, and shall include
developments for which: (1)there is a common developer for both the residential development
component and the non-residential development component, provided that for purposes of this
definition, multiple persons and entities maybe considered a common developer if there is a
contractual relationship among them obligating each entity to develop at least a portion of the
residential or non-residential development, or both, or otherwise to contribute resources to the
development; and (2) the residential and non-residential developments are located on the same
lot or adjoining lots, including, but not limited to, lots separated by a street, a river, or another

geographical feature.

“Moderate-income household” means a household with a household income in excess of 50
percent but less than 80 percent of the regional median income.

“Moderate-income unit” means a restricted unit that is affordable to a moderate-income
household.

“MONI” means the no-longer-active Market Oriented Neighborhood Investment Program, as it was
authorized by the Agency.

“Municipal housing liaison” or “MHL” means an appointed municipal employee who is, pursuant to
N.J.A.C. 5:99-6, responsible for oversight and/or administration of the affordable units created

within the municipality.

“Municipal affordable housing trust fund” means a separate, interest-bearing account held by a
municipality for the deposit of development fees, payments in lieu of constructing affordable units
on sites zoned for affordable housing previously approved prior to March 20, 2024 (per P.L. 2024,



c.2), barrier-free escrow funds, recapture funds, proceeds from the sale of affordable units, rental
income, repayments from affordable housing program loans, enforcement fines, unexpended RCA
funds remaining from a completed RCA project, application fees, and any other funds collected by
the municipality in connection with its affordable housing programs, which shall be used to
address municipal low- and moderate-income housing obligations within the time frames
established by the Legislature and this chapter.

“Municipal development fee ordinance” means an ordinance adopted by the governing body of a
municipality that authorizes the collection of development fees.

“New construction” means the creation of a new housing unit under regulation by a code
enforcement official regardless of the means by which the unit is created. Newly constructed units
are evidenced by the issuance of a certificate of occupancy and may include new residences
created through additions and alterations, adaptive reuse, subdivision, or conversion of existing
space, and moving a structure from one location to another.

“New Jersey Affordable Housing Trust Fund” means an account established pursuant to N.J.S.A.
52:27D-320.

“New Jersey Housing Resource Center” or “Housing Resource Center” means the online
affordable housing listing portal, or its successor, overseen by the Agency pursuant to N.J.S.A.
52:27D-321.3 et seq.

“95/5 restriction” means a deed restriction governing a restricted ownership unit that is part of a
housing element that received substantive certification from COAH pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:93, as it
was in effect at the time of the receipt of substantive certification, before October 1, 2001, or any
other deed restriction governing a restricted ownership unit with a seller repayment option
requiring 95 percent of the price differential to be paid to the municipality or an instrument of the
municipality at the closing of a sale at market price.

“Non-exempt sale” means any sale or transfer of ownership of a restricted unit to one’s self or to
another individual other than the transfer of ownership between spouses or civil union partners;
the transfer of ownership between former spouses or civil union partners ordered as a result of a
judicial decree of divorce or judicial separation, but not including sales to third parties; the transfer
of ownership between family members as a result of inheritance; the transfer of ownership through
an executor’s deed to a class A beneficiary; and the transfer of ownership by court order.

“Nonprofit’ means an organization granted nonprofit status in accordance with section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code.

“Non-residential development” means:
Any building or structure, or portion thereof, including, but not limited to, any appurtenant
improvements, which is designated to a use group other than a residential use group
according to the State Uniform Construction Code, N.J.A.C. 5:23, promulgated to effectuate
the State uniform Construction Code Act, N.J.S.A. 52:27D-119 et seq., including any
subsequent amendments or revisions thereto;
Hotels, motels, vacation timeshares, and child-care facilities; and
The entirety of all continuing care facilities within a continuing care retirement community
which is subject to the Continuing Care Retirement Community Regulation and Financial
Disclosure Act, N.J.S.A.52:27D-330 et seq.



“Non-residential development fee” means the fee authorized to be imposed pursuant to N.J.SA.
40:55D-8.1 through 40:55D-8.7.

“Order for repose” means the protection a municipality has from a builder's remedy lawsuit for a
period of time from the entry of a judgment of compliance by the Superior Court. A judgment of
compliance often resulits in an order for repose.

“Payment in lieu of constructing affordable units” means the prior approval of the payment of funds
to the municipality by a developer when affordable units are were not produced on a site zoned for
an inclusionary development. The statutory permission for payments in lieu of constructing
affordable units was eliminated per P.L. 2024, c.2.

“Prospective need” means a projection of housing needs based on development and growth which
is reasonably likely to occur in a region or a municipality, as the case may be, as a result of actual
determination of public and private entities. Prospective need shall be determined by the
methodology set forth pursuant to sections 6 and 7 of P.L.2024, c. 2 (C.52:27D-304.2 and
C.52:27D-304.3) for the fourth round and all future rounds of housing obligations.

“Qualified Urban Aid Municipality” means a municipality that meets the criteria established
pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:27D-304.3.¢(1).

“Person with a disability” means a person with a physical disability, infirmity, malformation, or
disfigurement which is caused by bodily injury, birth defect, aging, or iliness including epilepsy and
other seizure disorders, and which shall include, but not be limited to, any degree of paralysis,
amputation, lack of physical coordination, blindness or visual impairment, deafness or hearing
impairment, the inability to speak or a speech impairment, or physical reliance on a service
animal, wheelchair, or other remedial appliance or device.

“Price differential” means the difference between the controlled sale price of a restricted unit and
the contract price at the exit sale of the unit, determined as of the date of a proposed contract of
sale for the unit. If there is no proposed contract of sale, the price differential is the difference
between the controlled sale price of a restricted unit and the appraised value of the unit as if it
were not subject to UHAC, determined as of the date of the appraisal. If the controlled sale price
exceeds the contract price or, in the absence of a contract price, the appraised value, the price
differential is zero dollars.

“Prior round unit” means a housing unit that addresses a municipality’s fair share obligation from a
round prior to the fourth round of affordable housing obligations, including any unit that: (1)
received substantive certification from COAH; (2) is part of a third-round settlement agreement or
judgment of compliance approved by a court of competent jurisdiction, inclusive of units created
pursuant to a zoning designation adopted as part of the settlement agreement or judgment of
compliance to create a realistic opportunity for development; (3) is subject to a grant agreement or
other contract with either the State or a political subdivision thereof entered into prior to July 1,
2025, pursuant to either item (1) or (2) above; or (4) otherwise addresses a municipality’s fair
share obligation from a round prior to the fourth round of affordable housing obligations. A unit
created after the enactment of P.L. 2024, c. 2 (N.J.S.A. 52:27D-304.1) on March 20, 2024, is not a
prior round unit unless: (1) it is created pursuant to a prior round development plan or zoning
designation that received COAH or court approval on or before the cutoff date of June 30, 2025,
or the date that the municipality adopts the implementing ordinances and resolutions for the fourth



round of affordable housing obligations, whichever occurs sooner; and (2) its siting and creation
are consistent with the form of the prior round development plan or zoning designation in effect as
of the cutoff date, without any amendment or variance.

“Program” means the Affordable Housing Dispute Resolution Program, established pursuant to
section 5 of P.L.2024, c. 2 (C.52:27D-313.2).

“Random selection process” means a lottery process by which currently income-eligible applicant-
households are selected, at random, for placement in affordable housing units such that no
preference is given to one applicant over another, except in the case of a veterans’ preference
where such an agreement exists; for purposes of matching household income and size with an
appropriately priced and sized affordable unit; or another purpose allowed pursuant to N.J.A.C.
5:80-26.7(k)3. This definition excludes any practices that would allow affordable housing units to
be leased or sold on a first-come, first-served basis.

“RCA administrator’ means an appointed municipal employee who is responsible for oversight
and/or administration of affordable units and associated revenues and expenditures within the
municipality that were funded through regional contribution agreements.

“RCA project plan” means a past application, submitted by a receiving municipality in an RCA,
delineating the manner in which the receiving municipality intended to create or rehabilitate low-
and moderate-income housing.

“Receiving municipality” means, for the purposes of an RCA, a municipality that contractually
agreed to assume a portion of another municipality’s fair share obligation.

“Reconstruction” means any project where the extent and nature of the work is such that the work
area cannot be occupied while the work is in progress and where a new certificate of occupancy is
required before the work area can be reoccupied, pursuant to the Rehabilitation Subcode of the
uniform Construction Code, N.J.A.C. 5:23-6. Reconstruction shall not include projects comprised
only of floor finish replacement, painting or wallpapering, or the replacement of equipment or
furnishings. Asbestos hazard abatement and lead hazard abatement projects shall not be
classified as reconstruction solely because occupancy of the work area is not permitted.

“Recreational facilities and community centers” means any indoor or outdoor buildings, spaces,
structures, or improvements intended for active or passive recreation, including, but not limited to,
ballfields, meeting halls, and classrooms, accommodating either organized or informal activity.

“Regional contribution agreement” or “RCA” means a contractual agreement, pursuant to the Act,
into which two municipalities voluntarily entered into and was approved by COAH and/or Superior
Court prior to July 18, 2008, to transfer a portion of a municipality’s affordable housing obligation
to another municipality within its housing region.

“Regional median income” means the median income by household size for an applicable housing
region, as calculated annually in accordance with N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.3.

“Rehabilitation” means the repair, renovation, alteration, or reconstruction of any building or
structure, pursuant to the Rehabilitation Subcode, N.J.A.C. 5:23-6.

“Rent” means the gross monthly cost of a rental unit to the tenant, including the rent paid to the



landlord, as well as an allowance for tenant-paid utilities computed in accordance with allowances
published by DCA for its Section 8 program. With respect to units in assisted living residences,
rent does not include charges for food and services.

“Residential development fee” means money paid by a developer for the improvement of
residential property as permitted pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:27D-329.2 and N.J.A.C. 5:99-3.2.

“Restricted unit’ means a dwelling unit, whether a rental unit or ownership unit, that is subject to
the affordability controls of this subchapter but does not include a market-rate unit that was
financed pursuant to UHORP, MONI, or CHOICE.

“Spending plan” means a method of allocating funds contained in an affordable housing trust fund
account, which includes, but is not limited to, development fees collected and to be collected
pursuant to an approved municipal development fee ordinance, or pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:27D-
329.1 et seq., for the purpose of meeting the housing needs of low- and moderate-income

individuals.

“State Development and Redevelopment Plan” or “State Plan” means the plan prepared pursuant
to sections 1 through 12 of the “State Planning Act,” P.L.1985, c. 398 (C.52:18A-196 et al.),
designed to represent a balance of development and conservation objectives best suited to meet
the needs of the State, and for the purpose of coordinating planning activities and establishing
Statewide planning objectives in the areas of land use, housing, economic development,
transportation, natural resource conservation, agriculture and farmland retention, recreation, urban
and suburban redevelopment, historic preservation, public facilities and services, and
intergovernmental coordination pursuant to subsection f. of section 5 of P.L.1985, c. 398

(C.52:18A-200).

“Supportive housing household” means a very low-, low- or moderate-income household certified
as income eligible by an administrative agent in accordance with N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.14, in which at
least one member is an individual who requires supportive services to maintain housing stability
and independent living and who is part of a population identified by federal or state statute,
regulation, or program guidance as eligible for supportive or special needs housing. Such
populations include, but are not limited to: persons with intellectual or developmental disabilities,
persons with serious mental iliness, person with head injuries (as defined in Section 2 of P.L.
1977), persons with physical disabilities or chronic health conditions, persons who are homeless
as defined by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development at 24 C.F.R. Part 578,
survivors of domestic violence, youth aging out of foster care, and other special needs populations
recognized under programs administered by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Program, the McKinney—Vento Act, or the New
Jersey Department of Human Services. A supportive housing household may include family
members, unrelated individuals, or live-in aides, provided that the household meets the income
eligibility requirements of this subchapter, except that in the case of unrelated individuals not
operating as a family unit, income eligibility shall be tested on an individual basis rather than in the
aggregate; the unit is leased or sold subject to the affordability controls established herein; and
the supportive services available to the household are designed to promote housing stability,
independent living, and community integration. The determination of whether unrelated individuals
are operating as a family unit shall be made based on the applicant’s self-identification of
household members on the affordable housing application.

“Supportive Housing sponsoring program” means grant or loan program which provided financial



assistance to the development of the unit.

“Supportive housing unit” means a restricted rental unit, as defined by N.J.S.A. 34:1B-21.24, that
is affordable to very low-, low- or moderate-income households and is reserved for occupancy by
a supportive housing household. Supportive housing units are also referred to as permanent
supportive housing units.

“Transitional housing” means temporary housing that: (1) includes, but is not limited to, single-
room occupancy housing or shared living and supportive living arrangements; (2) provides access
to on-site or off-site supportive services for very low-income households who have recently been
homeless or lack stable housing; (3) is licensed by the department; and (4) allows households to
remain for a minimum of six months.

“Treasurer” means the Treasurer of the State of New Jersey.
“UHAC” means the Uniform Housing Affordability Controls set forth at N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.

“UHORP” means the Agency’s Urban Homeownership Recovery Program, as it was authorized by
the Agency Board.

“Unit type” means type of dwelling unit with various building standards including but not limited to
single-family detached, single-family attached/townhouse, stacked townhouse (attached building
containing 2 units each with separate entrances), duplex (detached building containing 2 units
each with separate entrances), triplex (3 units each with separate entrance), quadplex (4 units
each with separate entrance), multifamily / flat (2 or more units with a shared entrance). Inclusion
of a garage, or not, shall not define the unit type.

“Very-low-income household” means a household with a household income less than or equal to
30 percent of the regional median income.

“Very-low-income housing” means housing affordable according to the Federal Department of
Housing and Urban Development or other recognized standards for home ownership and rental
costs and occupied or reserved for occupancy by households with a gross household income
equal to 30 percent or less of the median gross household income for households of the same
size within the housing region in which the housing is located.

“Very-low-income unit” means a restricted unit that is affordable to a very-low-income household.
“Veteran” means a veteran as defined at N.J.S.A. 54:4-8.10.

“Veterans’ preference” means the agreement between a municipality and a developer or
residential development owner that allows for low- to moderate-income veterans to be given

preference for up to 50 percent of rental units in relevant projects, as provided for at N.J.S.A.
52:27D-311.].

“Weatherization” means building insulation (for attic, exterior walls and crawl space), siding to
improve energy efficiency, replacement storm windows, replacement storm doors, replacement
windows and replacement doors and is considered a major system for rehabilitation.

365-3. Monitoring and Reporting Requirements



A. The municipality shall comply with the following monitoring and reporting requirements regarding
the status of the implementation of its court-approved Housing Element and Fair Share Plan:

1. The municipality shall provide electronic monitoring data with the Department pursuant to
P.L 2024, Chapter 2 and N.J.A.C. 5:99 through the Affordable Housing Monitoring System
(AHMS). All monitoring information required to be made public by the FHA shall be
available to the public on the Department’s website at
https://www.nj.gov/dcal/dlps/hss/MuniStatusReporting.shtml.

2. On or before February 15 of each year, the municipality shall provide annual reporting of its
municipal Affordable Housing Trust Fund activity to the Department on the AHMS portal. The
reporting shall include an accounting of all municipal Affordable Housing Trust Fund activity,
including the sources and amounts of funds collected and the amounts and purposes for
which any funds have been expended, for the previous year from January 1st to December

31st.

3. On or before February 15 of each year, the annual reporting of the status of all affordable
housing activity shall be provided to the Department on the AHMS portal, for the previous
year from January 1st to December 31st.

365-4. New Construction (per N.J.A.C. 5:93 as may be updated per various sections in N.J.A.C. 5:97
and N.J.S.A. 52:27D-301 et seq.). Per the definition of “New Construction,” this section governs the
creation of new affordable housing units regardless of the means by which the units are created.
Newly constructed units may include new residences constructed or created through other means.

A. The following requirements shall apply to all new or planned developments that contain very
low-, low- and moderate-income housing units. To the extent possible, details related to the
adherence to the requirements below shall be outlined in the resolution granting municipal
subdivision or site plan approval of the project to assist municipal representatives, developers
and Administrative Agents.

B. Completion Schedule (previously known as phasing). Final site plan or subdivision approval shall
be contingent upon the affordable housing development meeting the following completion
schedule for very low-, low- and moderate-income units whether developed in a single-phase
development, or in a multi-phase development:

Maximum Percentage of Market-Rate
Units Issued a Temporary or Final
Certificate of Occupancy

Minimum Percentage of Affordable
Units Issued a Temporary or Final
Certificate of Occupancy

25+1 10
50 50
75 75
90 100

prior round units.

C. Design. The following design requirements apply to affordable housing developments, excluding

1. Design of 100 percent affordable developments:

i. Restricted units must meet the minimum square footage required for the number of
inhabitants for which the unit is marketed and the minimum square footage required for
each bedroom, as set forth in the Neighborhood Preservation Balanced Housing rules at

N.J.A.C. 5:43-2.4.
i, Each bedroom in each restricted unit must have at least one window.



ni.

Restricted units must include adequate air conditioning and heating.

. Design of developments comprising market-rate rental units and restricted rental units. The
following does not apply to prior round units, unless stated otherwise.

Vi.
Vii.

Restricted units must use the same building materials and architectural design elements
(for example, plumbing, insulation, or siding) as market-rate units of the same unit type
(for example, flat or townhome) within the same development, except that restricted units
and market-rate units may use different interior finishes. This shall apply to prior round
units.

Restricted units and market-rate units within the same affordable development must be
sited such that restricted units are not concentrated in less desirable locations.
Restricted units may not be physically clustered so as to segregate restricted and market-
rate units within the same development or within the same building, but must be
interspersed throughout the development, except that age-restricted and supportive
housing units may be physically clustered if the clustering facilitates the provision of on-
site medical services or on-site social services. Prior round affordable units shall be
integrated with market rate units to the extent feasible.

Residents of restricted units must be offered the same access to communal amenities as
residents of market-rate units within the same affordable development. Examples of
communal amenities include, but are not limited to, community pools, fitness and
recreation centers, playgrounds, common rooms and outdoor spaces, and building
entrances and exits. This shall apply to prior round units.

Restricted units must include adequate air conditioning and heating and must use the
same type of cooling and heating sources as market-rate units of the same unit type.
This shall apply to prior round units.

Each bedroom in each restricted unit must have at least one window.

Restricted units must be of the same unit type as market-rate units within the same
building.

viii. Restricted units and bedrooms must be no less than 90 percent of the minimum size

prescribed by the Neighborhood Preservation Balanced Housing rules at N.J.A.C. 5:43-
2.4,

. Design of developments containing for-sale units, including those with a mix of rental and
for-sale units. Restricted rental units shall meet the requirements of section b above.
Restncted sale units shall comply with the below:

Restricted units must use the same building standards as market-rate units of the same
unit type (for example, flat, townhome, or single-family home), except that restricted units
and market-rate units may use different interior finishes. This shall apply to prior round
units.

Restricted units may be clustered, provided that the buildings or housing product types
containing the restricted units are integrated throughout the development and are not
concentrated in an undesirable location or in undesirable locations. Prior round affordable
units shall be integrated with market rate units to the extent feasible.

Restricted units may be of different unit housing product types than market-rate units,
provided that there is a restricted option available for each market rate housing type.
Developments containing market-rate duplexes, townhomes, and/or single-family homes
shall offer restricted housing options that also include duplexes, townhomes, and/or
single-family homes. Penthouses and higher priced end townhouses may be exempt from
this requirement. The proper ratio for restricted to market-rate unit type shall be subject



to municipal ordinance or, if not specified, shall be determined at the time of site plan
approval.

iv. Restricted units must meet the minimum square footage required for the number of
inhabitants for which the unit is marketed and the minimum square footage required for
each bedroom, as set forth in the Neighborhood Preservation Balanced Housing rules at
N.J.A.C. 5:43-2.4.

v. Penthouse and end units may be reserved for market-rate sale, provided that the overall
number, value, and distribution of affordable units across the development is not
negatively impacted by such reservation(s).

vi. Residents of restricted units must be offered the same access to communal amenities as
residents of market-rate units within the same affordable development. Examples of
communal amenities include, but are not limited to, community pools, fitness and
recreation centers, playgrounds, common rooms and outdoor spaces, and building
entrances and exits. This shall apply to prior round units.

vii. Each bedroom in each restricted unit must have at least one window; and

viii. Restricted units must include adequate air conditioning and heating.

D. Ultilities.

1.

Affordable units shall utilize the same type of cooling and heating source as market-rate units
within the affordable housing development.

2. Tenant-paid utilities that are included in the utility allowance shall be so stated in the lease

and shall be consistent with the utility allowance in accordance with N.J.AC 5:80-26.13(e).

E. Low/moderate split and bedroom distribution.

i

Affordable units shall be divided equally between low- and moderate-income units, except
that where there is an odd number of affordable housing units, the extra unit shall be a low-
income unit.

In each affordable housing development, at least 50% of the restricted units within each
bedroom distribution rounded up to the nearest whole number shall be very low- or low-
income units.

Within rental developments, of the total number of affordable rental units, at least 13%,
rounded up to the nearest whole number, shall be affordable to very low-income households.
The very low-income units shall be distributed between each bedroom count as proportionally
as possible, to the nearest whole unit, to the total number of restricted units within each
bedroom count, and counted as part of the required number of low-income units within the
development.

Affordable housing developments that are not age-restricted or supportive housing shall be
structured such that:

i, Ataminimum, the number of bedrooms within the restricted units equals twice the number

of restricted units;

i. Two-bedroom and/or three-bedroom units compose at least 50 percent of all restricted
units;

ii. The combined number of efficiency and one-bedroom units shall be no greater than 20%
of the total number of low- and moderate-income units.

iv. At least 30% of all low- and moderate-income units shall be two-bedroom units.

v. At least 20% of all low- and moderate-income units shall be three-bedroom units.

vi. The remaining units may be allocated among two- and three- bedroom units at the

discretion of the developer.

5. Affordable housing developments that are age-restricted or supportive housing, except those

supportive housing units whose sponsoring program determines the unit arrangements, shall



be structured such that, at a minimum, the number of bedrooms shall equal the number of
age-restricted or supportive housing low- and moderate-income units within the inclusionary
development. Supportive housing units whose sponsoring program determines the unit
arrangement shall comply with all requirements of the sponsoring program. The standard
may be met by having all one-bedroom units or by having a two-bedroom unit for each
efficiency unit. In affordable housing developments with 20 or more restricted units that are
age-restricted or supportive housing, two-bedroom units must comprise at least 5% of those
restricted units.

F. Accessibility requirements.

1.

Any new construction shall be adaptable; however, elevators shall not be required in any

building or within any dwelling unit for the purpose of compliance with this section. In buildings

without elevator service, only ground floor dwelling units shall be required to be constructed

to conform with the technical design standards of the barrier free subcode. “Ground floor”

means the first floor with a dwelling unit or portion of a dwelling unit, regardless of whether

that floor is at grade. A building may have more than one ground floor.

Notwithstanding the exemption for townhouse dwelling units in the barrier free subcode, the

first floor of all townhouse dwelling units and of all other multifloor dwelling units that are

attached to at least one other dwelling unit shall be subject to the technical design standards

of the barrier free subcode and shall include the following features:

i. An adaptable toilet and bathing facility on the first floor;

ii. An adaptable kitchen on the first floor;

iii. An interior accessible route of travel however an interior accessible route of travel shall
not be required between stories;

iv. An adaptable room that can be used as a bedroom, with a door, or the casing for the
installation of a door that is compliant with the Barrier Free Subcode, on the first floor;

v. If not all of the foregoing requirements in 2.i. through 2.iv. can be satisfied, then an interior
accessible route of travel shali be provided between stories within an individual unit; and

vi. An accessible entranceway as set forth in P.L. 2005, c. 350 (N.J.S.A. 52:27D-311a et
seq.) and the Barrier Free Subcode, N.J.A.C. 5:23-7, or evidence that the municipality
has collected funds from the developer sufficient to make 10% of the adaptable entrances
in the development accessible:

(@) Where a unit has been constructed with an adaptable entrance, upon the request of
a disabled person who is purchasing or will reside in the dwelling unit, an accessible
entrance shall be installed.

(b) To this end, the builder of restricted units shall deposit funds within the Affordable
Housing Trust Fund sufficient to install accessible entrances in 10% of the affordable
units that have been constructed with adaptable entrances.

(c) The funds deposited shall be expended for the sole purpose of making the adaptable
entrance of an affordable unit accessible when requested to do so by a person with a
disability who occupies or intends to occupy the unit and requires an accessible
entrance.

(d) The developer of the restricted units shall submit to the Construction Official a design
plan and cost estimate for the conversion from adaptable to accessible entrances.

(e) Once the Construction Official has determined that the design plan to convert the unit
entrances from adaptable to accessible meets the requirements of the Barrier Free
Subcode, N.JA.C. 5:23-7, and that the cost estimate of such conversion is
reasonable, payment shall be made to the Affordable Housing Trust Fund and
earmarked appropriately.



vii. Full compliance with the foregoing provisions shall not be required where an entity can
demonstrate that it is “site-impracticable” to meet the requirements. If full compliance with
this section would be site impracticable, compliance with this section for any portion of
the dwelling shall be required to the extent that it is not site impracticable. Determinations
of site impracticability shall comply with the Barrier Free Subcode at N.J.A.C. 5:23-7.

365-5. Affordable Housing Programs

A. Pursuant to amended UHAC regulations at N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.1 et seq. and, in addition, pursuant
to P.L. 2024, c.2 and specifically to the amended FHA at N.J.S.A. 52:27D-311.m, “All parties
shall be entitled to rely upon regulations on municipal credits, adjustments, and compliance
mechanisms adopted by the Council on Affordable Housing unless those regulations are
contradicted by statute, including but not limited to P.L. 2024, c.2, or binding court decisions.”
The following are many of the main provisions of the COAH regulations at either N.J.A.C. 5:93
or 5:97 that have been upheld by the NJ Supreme Court. Municipalities should consult the cited
full COAH regulations when preparing the HEFSP for required documentation, etc. Additional
compliance details may also be included in the specific municipal program manual.

B. Rehabilitation Programs (per N.J.A.C. 5:93-5.2 with updated provisions herein per N.J.A.C. 5:97-
6.2 related to credit towards a municipal present need obligation).

1.

© N

The municipal rehabilitation program shall be designed to renovate deficient housing units
occupied or intended to be occupied by very low-, low- and moderate-income households
such that, after rehabilitation, these units will comply with the New Jersey State Housing
Code pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:28-1.1 et seq or the Rehabilitation Subcode, N.J.A.C. 5:23-6 to
the extent applicable.

Both ownership and rental units shall be eligible for rehabilitation funds.

All rehabilitated units shall remain affordable to very low-, low- and moderate-income

households for a period of 10 years (the control period). For owner-occupied units, the

control period shall be enforced with a mortgage and note and for renter-occupied units the
control period will be enforced with a deed restriction.

The municipality shall dedicate a minimum average hard cost of $10,000 for each unit to be

rehabilitated through this program and in addition shall dedicate associated rehabilitation

program soft costs such as case management, inspection fees and work write-ups.

The municipality shall designate, subject to the approval of the Department, one or more

Administrative Agents to administer the rehabilitation program in accordance with P.L 2024,

Chapter 2. The Administrative Agent(s) shall provide rehabilitation manuals for ownership

and rental rehabilitation programs. Manuals shall be adopted by resolution of the governing

body. Both rehabilitation manuals shall be available for public inspection in the Office of the

Municipal Clerk and on the municipal affordable housing web page.

Households determined to be very low-, low-, or moderate-income may participate in a

rehabilitation program. Rehabilitated units shall be exempt from the very low-income

requirements, low/mod split, and bedroom distribution requirements of UHAC, but shall be
administered in accordance with the following:

i If a unit is vacant at the time of rehabilitation, or if a rehabilitated unit becomes vacant
and is re-rented before the expiration of the affordability controls, the deed restriction shall
require that the unit be rented to a low- or moderate-income household at an affordable
rent.

i. If a rental unit is occupied by a tenant at the time rehabilitation is completed, the rent
charged after rehabilitation shall not exceed the lesser of the tenant’s current rent or the
maximum rent permitted under UHAC.

ii. Rents in rehabilitated units may increase annually based on the standards in UHAC.



iv. Atthe time of application, applicant households and/or tenant households shall be subject
to income eligibility determinations in accordance with UHAC.

C. Accessory Apartment program (per N.J.A.C. 5:93-5.9 as may be updated per various sections
in N.J.A.C. 5:97-6.8).

1.

2.

An accessory apartment program shall provide low- and moderate-income units or may be
limited to only low- or only moderate-income units.

Per N.J.A.C. 5:97-6.8(c)1, at the time of initial occupancy of the unit and for at least ten years
thereafter, the accessory apartment shall be rented only to income eligible households
consistent with the income category and rent structure of the unit.

Rents of accessory apartments shall be established using the same methodology of
affordable rental units discussed herein.

There shall be a recorded deed or declaration of covenants and restrictions applied to the
property upon which the accessory apartment is located running with the land and limiting its
subsequent rental for the duration of the control period.

The municipal accessory apartment program shall not restrict the number of bedrooms in
any accessory apartment.

Per N.J.A.C. 5:97-6.8(b)2, the municipality shall provide a minimum of $25,000 per unit to
subsidize the creation of each low-income accessory apartment or $20,000 per unit to
subsidize the creation of each moderate-income accessory apartment. Subsidy may be used
to fund actual construction costs and/or to provide compensation for reduced rental rates.

D. Market to Affordable program (per N.J.A.C. 5:97-6.9).

il.

© N

The market to affordable program permits the purchase or subsidization of unrestricted units

through a mortgage write-down provided to an income-certified buyer or through a sale or

rental as a low- or moderate-income unit to an income-eligible household. The market to
affordable program may produce both low- and moderate-income units.

At the time they are offered for sale or rental, eligible units may be new, pre-owned or vacant.

The units shall be certified to be in sound condition as a resuit of an inspection performed by

a licensed building inspector.

A minimum subsidy of $25,000 per moderate-income unit and/or $30,000 per low-income

unit shall be provided, with additional subsidy depending on the market prices or rents in a

municipality.

The units shall comply with UHAC with the following exceptions:

i. Bedroom distribution (N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.4).

ii. Low/moderate income split (N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.4).

Affordability average (N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.4); however:

i. The maximum rent for a moderate-income unit shall be affordable to households earning
no more than 60 percent of median income and the maximum rent for a low-income unit
shall be affordable to households earning no more than 44 percent of median income;
and

i. The maximum sales price for a moderate-income unit shall be affordable to households
earning no more than 70 percent of median income and the maximum sales price for a
low-income unit shall be affordable to households earning no more than 40 percent of
median income.

E. Extension of Controls Program (for ownership units per N.J.A.C. 5:97-6.14 and UHAC at
N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.6(h) through (k) and (m); and for rental units per N.J.A.C. 5:97-6.14 and
N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.12(h) through (k)).



An extension of affordability controls program is established to maintain and extend the
affordability of deed restricted units scheduled to come out of their affordability control period,
subject to N.J.A.C. 5:97-6.14 and UHAC, including the following:

i. The affordable unit meets the criteria for prior cycle (April 1, 1980 - December 15, 1986)
or post December 15, 1986 credits set forth in N.J.A.C. 5:97.

i. The affordability controls for the unit are scheduled to expire in the current round; or in
the next round of housing obligations if the municipal election to extend controls is made
no earlier than one year before the end of the current round;

ii. The municipality shall obtain a continuing certificate of occupancy or a certified statement
from the municipal building inspector stating that the restricted unit meets all code
standards.

iv. Ifa unit requires repair and/or rehabilitation work in order to receive a continuing certificate
of occupancy or certified statement from the municipal building inspector, the municipality
shall fund and complete the work.

v. The municipality shall adhere to the process for extending controls pursuant to UHAC for
extending ownership units and rental units, either inclusionary or 100% affordable

developments.
vi. The deed restriction for the extended control period shall be filed with the County Clerk.

F. Assisted Living Residence (per N.J.A.C. 5:97-6.11).

i

® o

An assisted living residence is a facility licensed by the New Jersey Department of Health to

provide apartment-style housing and congregate dining and to assure that assisted living

services are available. All or a designated number of apartments in the facility shall be

restricted to low- and moderate-income households.

The unit of credit shall be the apartment. However, a two-bedroom apartment shall be eligible

for two units of credit if it is restricted to two unrelated individuals.

A recipient of a Medicaid waiver shall automatically qualify as a low- or moderate-income

household.

Assisted living units are considered age-restricted housing in a HEFSP and shall be included

with the maximum number of units that may be age-restricted.

Low- and moderate-income residents cannot be charged any upfront fees.

The units shall comply with UHAC with the following exceptions:

i. Affirmative marketing (N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.16); provided that the units are restricted to
recipients of Medicaid waivers;

i. The deed restriction may be on the facility, rather than individual apartments or rooms;

iii. Low/moderate income split and affordability average (N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.4); only if all of the
affordable units are affordable to households at a maximum of 60 percent of median
income; and

Tenant income eligibility (N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.14); up to 80 percent of an applicant’s gross

income may be used for rent, food and services based on occupancy type and the affordable

unit must receive the same basic services as required by the Agency’s underwriting

guidelines and financing policies. The cost of non-housing related services shall not exceed

one and two-thirds times the rent established for each unit.

G. Supportive Housing and Group Homes (per N.J.A.C. 5:97-6.10).
1. The following provisions shall apply to group homes, residential health care facilities, and

supportive shared living housing:

i. Units are subject to Affirmative Marketing requirements, household certification, and
administrative agent oversight: and may, with the approval of the municipal housing
liaison and the administrative agent, be leased either by the bedroom or to a single



household in the case of multi-bedroom configurations, provided such arrangement is

consistent with the Federal Fair Housing Act (Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968).

ii. Units may, with the approval of the administrative agent, be subject to a master lease by
an approved supportive housing operator, provided that all subleases are to be certified
supportive housing households and remain fully subject to the affordability controls of this
subchapter. Rents for supportive housing units shall not exceed the rent standards
established and published by the New Jersey Department of Human Services.

iii. The unit of credit shall be the bedroom. However, the unit of credit shall be the unit if
occupied by a single person or household.

iv. Housing that is age-restricted shall be included with the maximum number of units that
may be age-restricted pursuant to the Act.

v. Occupancy shall not be restricted to youth under 18 years of age.

vi. In affordable developments with 20 or more restricted units that are supportive housing,
two-bedroom units must compose at least five percent of those restricted units.

vii. The bedrooms and/or units shall comply with UHAC with the following exceptions:

(a) Affirmative marketing; however, group homes, residential health care facilities,
permanent supportive housing, and supportive shared living housing shall be
affirmatively marketed to broadest possible population of qualified individuals with
special needs in accordance with a plan approved by the sponsoring program;

(b) Affordability average and bedroom distribution (N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.4).

viii. With the exception of units established with capital funding through a 20-year operating
contract with the Department of Human Services, Division of Developmental Disabilities,
group homes, residential health care facilities, supportive shared living housing and
permanent supportive housing shall have the appropriate controls on affordability in
accordance with the Act. In the event that a supportive housing provider is unable to
record or execute a long-term deed restriction, the units shall be subject to annual
recertification by the Municipal Housing Liaison to confirm continued occupancy and
compliance with this Section. ’

ix. Objective standards shall be applied in the selection of tenants for supportive housing
units and shall be designed to ensure that individuals are not excluded in an arbitrary or
capricious manner.

x. The following documentation shall be submitted by the sponsor to the municipality prior
to marketing the completed units or facility:

(a) An Affirmative Marketing Plan in accordance with D1 above; and

(b) If applicable, proof that the supportive and/or special needs housing is regulated by
the New Jersey Department of Health and Senior Services, the New Jersey
Department of Human Services or another State agency in accordance with the
requirements of this section, which includes validation of the number of bedrooms or
units in which low- or moderate-income occupants reside.

xi. The sponsor/owner shall complete annual monitoring as directed by the MHL.

365-6. Regional Income Limits.
A. Administrative agents shall use the current regional income limits for the purpose of pricing

B.

affordable units and determining income eligibility of households.

Regional income limits are based on regional median income, which is established by a regional
weighted average of the “median family incomes” published by HUD. The procedure for
computing the regional median income is detailed in N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.3.

Updated regional income limits are effective as of the effective date of the regional Section 8
income limits for the year, as published by HUD, or 45 days after HUD publishes the regional



365-7.

Section 8 income limits for the year, whichever comes later. The new income limits may not be

less than those of the previous year.

Maximum Initial Rents and Sales Prices.

In establishing rents and sales prices of affordable housing units, the Administrative Agent shall
follow the procedures set forth in UHAC N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.4.

The average rent for all restricted units within each affordable housing development shall be
affordable to households earning no more than 52 percent of regional median income.

The maximum rent for restricted rental units within each affordable housing development shall
be affordable to households earning no more than 60% of regional median income.

The developers and/or municipal sponsors of restricted rental units shall establish at least one
rent for each bedroom type for both low-income and moderate-income units, provided that at
least 13% of all low- and moderate-income rental units shall be affordable to households earning
no more than 30% of median income. These very low-income units shall be part of the fow-
income requirement and very-low-income units should be distributed between each bedroom
count as proportionally as possible, to the nearest whole unit, to the total number of restricted

units within each bedroom count.

The maximum sales price of restricted ownership units within each affordable housing
development shall be affordable to households earning no more than 70% of median income,
and each affordable housing development must achieve an affordability average that does not
exceed 55% for all restricted ownership units. In achieving this affordability average, moderate-
income ownership units must be available for at least three different prices for each bedroom
type, and low-income ownership units must be available for at least two different prices for each
bedroom type when the number of low- and moderate-income units permits.

The master deeds and declarations of covenants and restrictions for affordable developments
may not distinguish between restricted units and market-rate units in the calculation of any
condominium or homeowner association fees and special assessments to be paid by low- and
moderate-income purchasers and those to be paid by market-rate purchasers. Notwithstanding
the foregoing sentence, condominium units subject to a municipal ordinance adopted before
December 20, 2004, which ordinance provides for condominium or homeowner association fees
and/or assessments different from those provided for in this subsection are governed by the

ordinance.

In determining the initial sales prices and rents for compliance with the affordability average
requirements for restricted family units, the following standards shall be met:

1. A studio or efficiency unit shall be affordable to a one-person household;

2. A one-bedroom unit shall be affordable to a one and one-half person household;

3. A two-bedroom unit shall be affordable to a three-person household;

4. A three-bedroom unit shall be affordable to a four and one-half person household; and

5. A four-bedroom unit shall be affordable to a six-person household.

In determining the initial rents and sales prices for compliance with the affordability average
requirements for restricted units in assisted living facilities and age-restricted and special needs
and supportive housing developments, the following standards shall be met:

1. A studio or efficiency unit shall be affordable to a one-person household;

2. A one-bedroom unit shall be affordable to a one and one-half person household; and



L.

365-8.

3. A two-bedroom unit shall be affordable to a two-person household or to two one-person
households. Where pricing is based on two one-person households, the developer shall
provide a list of units so priced to the Municipal Housing Liaison and the Administrative Agent.

The initial purchase price for all restricted ownership units shall be calculated so that the monthly
carrying cost of the unit, including principal and interest (based on a mortgage loan equal to 95
percent of the purchase price and the FreddieMac 30-Year Fixed Rate-Mortgage rate of
interest), property taxes, homeowner and private mortgage insurance and condominium or
homeowner association fees do not exceed 30 percent of the eligible monthly income of the
appropriate size household as determined pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.7, as may be amended
and supplemented; provided, however, that the price shall be subject to the affordability average
requirement of N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.4, as may be amended and supplemented.

The initial rent for a restricted rental unit shall be calculated so that the total monthly housing
expense, including an allowance for tenant-paid utilities, does not exceed 30 percent of the gross
monthly income of a household of the appropriate size whose income is targeted to the
applicable percentage of median income for the unit, as determined pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:80-
26.3, as may be amended and supplemented. The rent shall also comply with the affordability
average requirement of N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.4, as may be amended and supplemented. The initial
rent for a restricted rental unit shall be calculated so the eligible monthly housing
expenses/income, including an allowance for tenant-paid utilities does not exceed 30 percent
of gross income of and the appropriate household size as determined pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:80-
26.3, as may be amended and supplemented.

At the anniversary date of the tenancy of the certified household occupying a restricted rental
unit, following proper notice provided to the occupant household pursuant to N.J.S.A. 2A:18-
61.1.f, the rent may be increased to an amount commensurate with the annual percentage
increase in the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U), specifically U.S. Bureau
of Labor Statistics Series CUURO100SAH, titled “Housing in Northeast urban, all urban
consumers, not seasonally adjusted.” Rent increases for units constructed pursuant to Low-
Income Housing Tax Credit regulations shall be indexed pursuant to the regulations governing
Low-Income Housing Tax Credits.

Affirmative Marketing.
The municipality shall adopt, by resolution, an Affirmative Marketing Plan, subject to approval of
the Superior Court, compliant with N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.16, as may be amended and supplemented.

The Affirmative Marketing Plan is a regional marketing strategy designed to attract buyers and/or
renters of all majority and minority groups, regardless of race, creed, color, national origin,
ancestry, marital or familial status, gender, affectional or sexual orientation, disability, age, or
number of children, to housing units which are being marketed by a developer, sponsor or owner
of affordable housing. The Affirmative Marketing Plan is intended to target those potentially
eligible. persons who are least likely to apply for affordable units in that region. It is a continuing
program that directs all marketing activities toward Housing Region 2 and is required to be
followed throughout the period of deed restriction.

The Affirmative Marketing Plan provides the following preferences, provided that units that
remain unoccupied after these preferences are exhausted may be offered to households without
regard to these preferences.



1. Where the municipality has entered into an agreement with a developer or residential
development owner to provide a preference for very-low- low-, and moderate-income
veterans who served in time of war or other emergency, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:27D-311 ],
there shall be a preference for veterans for up to 50 percent of the restricted rental units in a
particular project.

2. There shall be a regional preference for all households that live and/or work in Housing
Region 2 comprising Warren, Essex, Union and Warren Counties.

3. Subordinate to the regional preference, there shall be a preference for households that live
and/or work in New Jersey.

4. With respect to existing restricted units undergoing approved rehabilitation for the purpose
of preservation or to restricted units newly created to replace existing restricted units
undergoing demolition, a preference for the very-low-, low-, and moderate-income
households that are displaced by the rehabilitation or demolition and replacement.

D. The municipality has the ultimate responsibility for adopting the Affirmative Marketing Plan and
for the proper administration of the Affirmative Marketing Process, including the marketing of
initial sales and rentals and resales and re-rentals. The Administrative Agent designated by the
municipality shall implement the Affirmative Marketing Process to ensure the Affirmative
Marketing of all affordable units, with the exception of affordable programs that are exempt from
Affirmative Marketing as noted herein.

E. The Affirmative Marketing Process shall describe the media to be used in advertising and
publicizing the availability of housing. In implementing the Affirmative Marketing Process, the
Administrative Agent shall consider the use of language translations where appropriate.

F. Applications for affordable housing or notices thereof, if offered online, shall be available in
several locations, including, at a minimum, the County Administration Building and/or the County
Library for each county within the housing region; the municipal administration building and
municipal library in the municipality in which the units are located; and the developer’s rental or
sales office. The developer shall mail applications to prospective applicants upon request and
shall make applications available through a secure online website address.

G. In addition to other Affirmative Marketing strategies, the Administrative Agent shall provide
specific notice of the availability of affordable housing units on the New Jersey Housing
Resource Center website. Any other entities, including developers or persons or companies
retained to implement the Affirmative Marketing Process, shall comply with this paragraph.

H. In implementing the Affirmative Marketing Process, the Administrative Agent shall provide a list
of counseling services to low- and moderate-income applicants on subjects such as budgeting,
credit issues, mortgage qualification, rental lease requirements, and landlord/tenant law.

. The Affirmative Marketing Process for available affordable units shall begin at least four months
(120 days) prior to the expected date of occupancy.

J. The cost to affirmatively market the affordable units shall be the responsibility of the developer,
sponsor or owner, with the exception of Affirmative Marketing for resales.

365-9. Selection of Occupants of Affordable Housing Units.
A. The Administrative Agent shall use a random selection process to select occupants of very low-

, low- and moderate-income housing.



B.

A pool of interested households will be maintained in accordance with the provisions of N.J.A.C.
5:80-26.16.

365-10. Occupancy Standards.

A.

In referring certified households to specific restricted units, to the extent feasible, and without

causing an undue delay in occupying the unit, the Administrative Agent shall strive to:

1. Ensure each bedroom is occupied by at least one person, except for age-restricted and
supportive and special needs housing units;

2. Provide a bedroom for every two adult occupants;

3. With regard to occupants under the age of 18, accommodate the household’s requested
arrangement, except that such arrangement may not result in more than two occupants under
the age of 18 occupying any bedroom, and

4. Avoid placing a one-person household into a unit with more than one bedroom.

365-11. Control Periods for Restricted Ownership Units and Enforcement Mechanisms.

A.

Control periods for restricted ownership units shall be in accordance with N.J.A.C. 5:80- 26.6,
as may be amended and supplemented, and each restricted ownership unit shall remain subject
to the controls on affordability for a period of at least 30 years subject to the requirements of
N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.6, as may be amended and supplemented.

Rehabilitated housing units that are improved to code standards shall be subject to affordability
controls for a period of not less than 10 years (crediting towards present need only).

The affordability control period for a restricted ownership unit shall commence on the date the
initial certified household takes title to the unit. The date of commencement shall be identified
in the deed restriction.

If existing affordability controls are being extended, the extended control period for a restricted
ownership unit commences on the effective date of the extension, which is the end of the original

control period.

After the end of any control period, the restricted ownership unit remains subject to the
affordability controls set forth in this subchapter until the owner gives notice of their intent to

make an exit sale, at which point:
1. If the municipality exercises the right to extend the affordability controls on the unit, no exit

sale occurs and a new control period commences; or
2. If the municipality does not exercise the right to extend the affordability controls on the unit,

the affordability controls terminate following the exit sale.

Prior to the issuance of any building permit for the construction/rehabilitation of restricted
ownership units, the developer/owner and the municipality shall record a preliminary instrument
provided by the Administrative Agent.

Prior to the issuance of the initial certificate of occupancy for a restricted ownership unit and
upon each successive sale during the period of restricted ownership, the Administrative Agent
shall determine the restricted price for the unit and shall also determine the nonrestricted, fair
market value of the unit based on either an appraisal or the unit's equalized assessed value
without the restrictions in place.



H. At the time of the initial sale of the unit and upon each successive price-restricted sale, the initial
purchaser shall execute and deliver to the Administrative Agent a recapture note obliging the
purchaser, as well as the purchaser’s heirs, successors, and assigns, to repay, upon the first
non-exempt sale after the unit's release from the restrictions set forth in this Ordinance, an
amount equal to the difference between the unit's non-restricted fair market value and its
restricted price, and the recapture note shall be secured by a recapture lien evidenced by a duly

recorded mortgage on the unit.

I. The affordability controls set forth in this Ordinance shall remain in effect despite the entry and
enforcement of any judgment of foreclosure with respect to price-restricted ownership units.

365-12. Price Restrictions for Restricted Ownership Units and Resale Prices.
A. Price restrictions for restricted ownership units shall be in accordance with N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.7,
as may be amended and supplemented, including:
1. The initial purchase price and affordability percentage for a restricted ownership unit shall be
set by the Administrative Agent.

2. The Administrative Agent shall approve all resale prices, in writing and in advance of the
resale, to assure compliance with the standards set forth in N.J.A.C 5:80-26.7.

i. If the resale occurs prior to the one-year anniversary of the date on which title to the unit
was transferred to a certified household, the maximum resale price for a is the most recent
non-exempt purchase price.

i. If the resale occurs on or after such anniversary date, the maximum resale price is the
most recent non-exempt purchase price increased to reflect the cumulative annual
percentage increases to the regional median income, effective as of the same date as the
regional median income calculated pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.3

3. The owners of restricted ownership units may apply to the Administrative Agent to increase
the maximum sales price for the unit on the basis of anticipated capital improvements. Eligible
capital improvements shall be:

i, those that render the unit suitable for a larger household or the addition of a bathroom.

i. The maximum resale price may be further increased by an amount up to the cumulative
dollar value of approved capital improvements made after the last non-exempt sale for
improvements and/or upgrades to the unit, excluding capital improvements paid for by
the entity favored on the recapture note and recapture lien described at N.J.A.C. 5:80-

26.6(d);

4. No increase for capital improvements is permitted if the maximum resale price prior to
adjusting for capital improvements already exceeds whatever initial purchase price the unit
would have if it were being offered for purchase for the first time at the initial affordability
percentage. All adjustments for capital improvements are subject to 10-year, straight-line
depreciation.

B. Upon the resale of a restricted ownership unit, all items of property that are permanently affixed
to the unit or were included when the unit was initially restricted (for example, refrigerator, range,
washer, dryer, dishwasher, wall-to-wall carpeting) shall be included in the maximum allowable
resale price. Other items may be sold to the purchaser at a reasonable price that has been
approved by the Administrative Agent at the time of the signing of the agreement to purchase
but shall be separate and apart from any contract of sale for the underlying real estate. The
purchase of central air conditioning installed subsequent to the initial sale of the unit and not



included in the base price may be made a condition of the unit resale provided the price of the
air conditioning equipment, which shall be subject to 10-year, straight-line depreciation, has
been approved by the Administrative Agent. Unless otherwise approved by the Administrative
Agent, the purchase of any property other than central air conditioning shall not be made a
condition of the unit resale. The seller and the purchaser must personally certify at the time of
closing that no unapproved transfer of funds for the purpose of selling and receiving property
has taken place at the time of or as a condition of resale.

365-13. Buyer Income Eligibility.

A. Buyer income eligibility for restricted ownership units shall be established pursuant to N.J.A.C.
5:80-26.17, as may be amended and supplemented, such that very low-income ownership units
shall be reserved for occupancy by households with a gross household income less than or
equal to 30% of median income, low-income ownership units shall be reserved for occupancy
by households with a gross household income less than or equal to 50% of median income and
moderate-income ownership units shall be reserved for occupancy by households with a gross
household income less than 80% of median income.

B. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Administrative Agent may, upon approval by the municipality,
and subject to the Division’s approval, permit a moderate-income purchaser to buy a low-income
unit if and only if the Administrative Agent can demonstrate that there is an insufficient number
of eligible low-income purchasers in the housing region to permit prompt occupancy of the unit
and all other reasonable efforts to attract a low-income purchaser, including pricing and financing
incentives, have failed. Any such low-income unit that is sold to a moderate-income household
shall retain the required pricing and pricing restrictions for a low-income unit. Similarly, the
administrative agent may permit low-income purchasers to buy very-low-income units in housing
markets where, as determined by the Division, units are reserved for very-low-income
purchasers, but there is an insufficient number of very-low-income purchasers to permit prompt
occupancy of the units. In such instances, the purchased unit must be maintained as a very-low-
income unit and sold at a very-low-income price point such that on the next resale the unit will
still be affordable to very-low-income households and able to be purchased by a very-low-
income household. A very-low-income unit that is seeking bonus credit pursuant to N.J.S.A.
52:27D-311.k(9) must first be advertised exclusively as a very-low-income unit according to the
Affirmative Marketing requirements at N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.16, then advertised as a very-low-
income or low-income unit for at least 30 additional days prior to referring any low-income
household to the unit.

C. A certified household that purchases a restricted ownership unit must occupy it as the certified
household’s principal residence and shall not lease the unit; provided, however, that the
Administrative Agent may permit the owner of a restricted ownership unit, upon application and
a showing of hardship, to lease the restricted unit to another certified household for a period not
to exceed one year.

D. The Administrative Agent shall certify a household as eligible for a restricted ownership unit
when the household is a low-income household or a moderate-income household, as applicable
to the unit, and the estimated monthly housing cost for the particular unit (including principal,
interest, property taxes, homeowner and private mortgage insurance and condominium or
homeowner association fees, as applicable) does not exceed 35 percent of the household’s
eligible monthly income; provided, however, that this limit may be exceeded if one or more of
the following circumstances exists:



1. The household currently pays more than 35% (40% for households eligible for age-restricted
units) of its gross household income for housing expenses, and the proposed housing
expenses will reduce its housing costs;

2. The household has consistently paid more than 35% (40% for households eligible for age-
restricted units) of eligible monthly income for housing expenses in the past and has proven

its ability to pay; or

3. The household is currently in substandard or overcrowded living conditions;
4 The household documents the existence of assets, within the asset limitation otherwise
applicable, with which the household proposes to supplement the rent payments
365-14. Limitations on Indebtedness Secured by Ownership Unit; Subordination.

A.

B.

Prior to incurring any indebtedness to be secured by a restricted ownership unit, the owner shall
apply to the Administrative Agent for a determination in writing that the proposed indebtedness
complies with the provisions of this Section, and the Administrative Agent shall issue such
determination prior to the owner incurring such indebtedness.

With the exception of original purchase money mortgages, neither an owner nor a lender shall
at any time during the control period cause or permit the total indebtedness secured by a
restricted ownership unit to exceed 95% of the maximum allowable resale price of that unit, as
such price is determined by the Administrative Agent in accordance with N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.7(c).

365-15. Control Periods for Restricted Rental Units.

A.

Control periods for units that meet the definition of prior round units shall be pursuant to the 2001
UHAC rules originally adopted October 1, 2001, 33 N.J.R. 3432, and amended December 20,
2004, 36 N.J.R. 5713 and shall remain subject to the requirements of this ordinance for a period
of at least 30 years as applicable unless otherwise indicated.

Other than for prior round units, control periods for restricted rental units shall be in accordance
with N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.12, as may be amended and supplemented, and each restricted rental
unit shall remain subject to the requirements of this Ordinance for a period of at least 40 years.
Restricted rental units created as part of developments receiving 9% Low-Income Housing Tax
Credits must comply with a control period of not less than a 30-year compliance period plus a
15-year extended use period for a total of 45 years.

The affordability control period for a restricted rental unit shall commence on the first date that a
unit is issued a certificate of occupancy following the execution of the deed restriction or, if
affordability controls are being extended, on the effective date of the extension, which is the end

of the original control period.

Rehabilitated renter-occupied housing units that are improved to code standards shall be subject
to affordability controls for a period of not less than 10 years.

Prior to the issuance of any building permit for the construction/rehabilitation of restricted rental
units, the developer/owner and the municipality shall record a preliminary instrument provided
by the Administrative Agent.

Deeds of all real property that include restricted rental units shall contain deed restriction
language. The deed restriction shall have priority over all mortgages on the property. The deed
restriction shall be recorded by the developer with the county records office, and provided as



filed and recorded, to the Administrative Agent within 30 days of the receipt of a certificate of
occupancy.

G. A restricted rental unit shall remain subject to the affordability controls of this Ordinance despite

the occurrence of any of the following events:

1. Sublease or assignment of the lease of the unit;

2. Sale or other voluntary transfer of the ownership of the unit;

3. The entry and enforcement of any judgment of foreclosure on the property containing the
unit; or

4. The end of the control period, until the occupant household vacates the unit, or is certified as
over-income and the controls are released in accordance with UHAC.

365-16. Rent Restrictions for Rental Units; Leases and Fees.

A.

B.

The initial rent for a restricted rental unit shall be set by the Administrative Agent.

A written lease shall be required for all restricted rental units, except for units in an assisted living
residence, and tenants shall be responsible for security deposits and the full amount of the rent
as stated on the lease. A copy of the current lease for each restricted rental unit shall be retained
on file by the Administrative Agent.

No additional fees, operating costs, or charges shall be added to the approved rent (except, in
the case of units in an assisted living residence, to cover the customary charges for food and
services) without the express written approval of the Administrative Agent.

1. Operating costs, for the purposes of this section, include certificate of occupancy fees, move-
in fees, move-out fees, mandatory internet fees, mandatory cable fees, mandatory utility
submetering fees, and for developments with more than one and a half off-street parking
spaces per unit, parking fees for one parking space per household.

Any fee structure that would remove or limit affordable unit occupant access to any amenities or
services that are required or included for market-rate unit occupants is prohibited. Application
fees (including the charge for any credit check) shall not exceed 5% of the monthly rent of the
applicable restricted unit to be applied to the costs of administering the controls applicable to the
unit as set forth in this Ordinance.

Fees for unit-specific, non-communal items that are charged to market-rate unit tenants on an
optional basis, such as pet fees for tenants with pets, storage spaces, bicycle-share programs,
or one-time rentals of party or media rooms, may also be charged to affordable unit tenants, if
applicable

Pet fees may not exceed $30.00 per month and associated one-time payments for optional fees
pertaining to pets, such as a pet cleaning fee, are prohibited.

Fees charged to affordable unit tenants for other optional, unit-specific, non-communal items
shall not exceed the amounts charged to market-rate tenants.

For any prior round rental unit leased before December 20, 2024, elements of the existing fee
structure that are consistent with prior rules, but inconsistent with 5:80-26.13(c)1, may continue
until the occupant household’s current lease term expires or that occupant household vacates
the unit, whichever occurs later.



L.
365-17. Tenant Income Eligibility.
A. Tenant income eligibility shall be determined pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.14, as may be
amended and supplemented, and shall be determined as follows:
1. Very low-income rental units shall be reserved for households with a gross household income
less than or equal to 30% of the regional median income by household size.
2. Low-income rental units shall be reserved for households with a gross household income
less than or equal to 50% of the regional median income by household size.
3. Moderate-income rental units shall be reserved for households with a gross household
income less than 80% of the regional median income by household size.

B. The Administrative Agent shall certify a household as eligible for a restricted rental unit when the
household is a very low-income, low-income or moderate-income household, as applicable to
the unit, and the rent proposed for the unit does not exceed 35% (40% for age-restricted units)
of the household’s eligible monthly income as determined pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.17, as
may be amended and supplemented; provided, however, that this limit may be exceeded if one
or more of the following circumstances exists:

1. The household currently pays more than 35% (40% for households eligible for age-restricted
units) of its gross household income for rent, and the proposed rent will reduce its housing
costs;

2. The household has consistently paid more than 35% (40% for households eligible for age-
restricted units) of eligible monthly income for rent in the past and has proven its ability to
pay;

The household is currently in substandard or overcrowded living conditions;

The household documents the existence of assets with which the household proposes to

supplement the rent payments; or

5. The household documents reliable anticipated third-party assistance from an outside source
such as a family member in a form acceptable to the Administrative Agent and the owner of

the unit.

how

C. The applicant shall file documentation sufficient to establish the existence of any of the
circumstances in 2.a. through 2.e. above with the Administrative Agent, who shall counsel the

household on budgeting.

365-18. Municipal Housing Liaison.
A. The Municipal Housing Liaison shall be approved by municipal resolution.

B. The Municipal Housing Liaison shall be approved by the Division, or is in the process of getting
approval, and fully or conditionally meets the requirements for qualifications, including initial and
periodic training as set forth in in N.J.A.C. 5:99-1 et seq.

C. The Municipal Housing Liaison shall be responsible for oversight and administration of the
affordable housing program, including the following responsibilities, which may not be contracted
out to the Administrative Agent:

1. Serving as the primary point of contact for all inquiries from the Affordable Housing Dispute
Resolution Program, the State, affordable housing providers, administrative agents and
interested households.

The oversight of the Affirmative Marketing Plan and affordability controls.

When applicable, overseeing and monitoring any contracting Administrative Agent.

Overseeing the monitoring of the status of all restricted units listed in the Fair Share Plan.

hON



5. Verifying, certifying and providing annual information within AHMS at such time and in such
form as required by the Division.

6. Coordinating meetings with affordable housing providers and administrative agents, as
needed. ;

7. Attending continuing education opportunities on affordability controls, compliance
monitoring, and affirmative marketing as offered or approved by the Division.

8. Overseeing the recording of a preliminary instrument in the form set forth at N.J.A.C. 5:80-
26.1 for each affordable housing development.

9. Coordinating with the Administrative Agent, municipal attorney and municipal Construction
Code Official to ensure that permits are not issued unless the document required in C.8.
above has been duly recorded.

10. Listing on the municipal website contact information for the MHL and Administrative Agents.

365-19. Administrative Agent.

A. All municipalities that have created or will create affordable housing programs and/or affordable
units shall designate or approve, for each project within its HEFSP, an administrative agent to
administer the affordable housing program and/or affordable housing units in accordance with
the requirements of the FHA, NJAC 5:99-1 et seq. and UHAC.

B. The fees for administrative agents shall be paid as follows:

Administrative agent fees related to rental units shall be paid by the developer/owner.
Administrative agent fees related to initial sale of units shall be paid by the developer.
Administrative agent fees related to resales shall be paid by the seller of the affordable home.
Administrative agent fees related to ongoing administration and enforcement shall be paid
by the municipality.

POON =

C. An Operating Manual for each affordable housing program shall be provided by the
Administrative Agent(s). The Operating Manual(s) shall be available for public inspection in the
Office of the Clerk and in the office(s) of the Administrative Agent(s). Operating manuals shall
be adopted by resolution of the Governing Body.

D. Subject to the role of the Administrative Agent(s), the duties and responsibilities as are set forth
in N.J.A.C. 5:99-7and which are described in full detail in the Operating Manual, including those
set forth in UHAC, include:

1. Attending continuing education opportunities on affordability controls, compliance
monitoring, and affirmative marketing as offered or approved by the Division;
2. Affirmative marketing:

i. Conducting an outreach process to affirmatively market affordable housing units in
accordance with the Affirmative Marketing Plan of the municipality and the provisions of
N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.16.

ii. Providing counseling, or contracting to provide counseling services, to low- and
moderate-income applicants on subjects such as budgeting, credit issues, mortgage
qualification, rental lease requirements; and landlord/tenant law.

3. Household certification.

i. Soliciting, scheduling, conducting and following up on mterwews with interested
households.

ii. Conducting interviews and obtaining sufficient documentation of gross income and assets
upon which to base a determination of income eligibility for a low- or moderate-income
unit;



iv.

vi.

. Aff
I

. Re
i.

. Re
i.

Providing written notification to each applicant as to the determination of eligibility or non-
eligibility within 5 days of the determination thereof.

Requiring that all certified applicants for restricted units execute a certificate substantially
in the firm, as applicable, of either the ownership or rental certificates set forth in the
Appendices J and K of N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.1 et seq.

Creating and maintaining a referral list of eligible applicant households living in the
housing region, and eligible applicant households with members working in the housing
region, where the units are located.

Employing a random selection process as provided in the Affirmative Marketing Plan
when referring households for certification to affordable units.

ordability controls.

Furnishing to attorneys or closing agents forms of deed restrictions and mortgages for the
recording at the time of conveyance of title of each restricted unit.

Ensuring that the removal of the deed restrictions and cancellation of the mortgage note
are effectuated and filed properly with the County Register of Deeds or County Clerk’s
office after the termination of the affordability controls for each restricted unit in
accordance with UHAC.

Communicating with lenders and the Municipal Housing Liaison regarding foreclosures.
Ensuring the issuance of Continuing Certificates of Occupancy or certifications pursuant

to N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.11.

cords retention.

Creating and maintaining a file on each restricted unit for its control period, including the
recorded deed with restrictions, recorded recapture mortgage, and note, as appropriate.
Records received, retained, retrieved, or transmitted in furtherance of crediting affordable
units of a municipality constitute public records of the municipality as defined by N.J.S.A.
47:3-16, and are legal property of the municipality.

sales and re-rentals.

Instituting and maintaining an effective means of communicating information between
owners and the Administrative Agent regarding the availability of restricted units for resale

or re-rental.
Instituting and maintaining an effective means of communicating information to very low-

. low-, or moderate-income households regarding the availability of restricted units for
resale or re-rental.

. Processing requests from unit owners.

iii.
iv.

Reviewing and approving requests from owners of restricted units who wish to refinance
or take out home equity loans during the term of their ownership to determine that the
amount of indebtedness to be incurred will not violate the terms of this ordinance.
Reviewing and approving requests to increase sales prices from owners of restricted units
who wish to make capital improvements to the units that would affect the selling price,
such authorizations to be limited to those improvements resulting in additional bedrooms
or bathrooms and the depreciated cost of central air conditioning systems.

Notifying the municipality of an owner’s intent to sell a restricted unit.

Making determinations on requests by owners of restricted units for hardship waivers.

. Enforcement.



365-20.

i. Securing annually from the municipality a list of all affordable ownership units for which
property tax bills are mailed to absentee owners, and notifying all such owners that they
must either move back to their unit or sell it; '

ii. Securing from all developers and sponsors of restricted units, at the earliest point of
contact in the processing of the project or development, written acknowledgement of the
requirement that no restricted unit can be offered, or in any other way committed, to any
person, other than a household duly certified to the unit by the Administrative Agent;

iii. Sending annual mailings to all owners of affordable dwelling units reminding them of the
notices and requirements outlined in N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.19(d)4;

iv. Establishing a program for diverting unlawful rent payments to the municipal Affordable
Housing Trust Fund; and

v. Creating and publishing a written operating manual for each affordable housing program
administered by the Administrative Agent setting forth procedures for administering the
affordability controls.

The Administrative Agent(s) shall, as delegated by the municipality, have the authority to take
all actions necessary and appropriate to carry out its/their responsibilities, herein.

Responsibilities of The Owner of a development containing affordable units.

A. The owner of all developments containing affordable units subject to this subchapter or the
assigned management company thereof shall provide to the administrative agent:

1.

SIN

No o

Site plan, architectural plan, or other plan that identifies the location of each affordable unit,
if subject to the site plan approval, settlement agreement, or other applicable document
regulating the location of affordable units. The administrative agent shall determine the
location of affordable units if not set forth in the site plan approval, settlement agreement, or
other applicable document.

The total number of units in the project and the number of affordable units.

The breakdown of the affordable units by or identification of affordable unit locations by
bedroom count and income level, including street addresses / unit numbers, if subject to the
site plan approval, settlement agreement, or other applicable document regulating the
breakdown of affordable units. The administrative agent shall determine the bedroom and
income distribution if not set forth in the site plan approval, settiement agreement, or other
applicable document.

Floor plans of all affordable units, including complete and accurate identification of all rooms
and the dimensions thereof.

A projected construction schedule.

The location of any common areas and elevators.

The name of the person who will be responsible for official contact with the administrative
agent for the duration of the project, which must be updated if the contact changes.

B. In addition to A above, the owner of rental developments containing affordable rental units
subject to this subchapter or the assigned management company thereof shall:

1.

2.

Send to all current tenants in all restricted rental units an annual mailing containing a notice
as to the maximum permitted rent and a reminder of the requirement that the unit must remain
their principal place of residence, which is defined as residing in the unit at least 260 days
out of each calendar year, together with the telephone number, mailing address, and email
address of the administrative agent to whom complaints of excess rent can be issued.
Provide to the administrative agent a description of any applicable fees.



3. Provide to the administrative agent a description of the types of utilities and which utilities will
be included in the rent.

4. Agree and ensure that the utility configuration established at the start of the rent-up process
not be altered at any time throughout the restricted period.

5. Provide to the administrative agent a proposed form of lease for any rental units.

6. Ensure that the tenant selection criteria for the applicants for affordable units not be more
restrictive that the tenant selection criteria for applicants for non-restricted units.

7. Strive to maintain the continued occupancy of the affordable units during the entire restricted

period.

C. In addition to Subsection A, above, the owner of affordable for-sale developments containing
affordable for-sale units subject to this subchapter or the assigned management company
thereof shall provide the administrative agent:

1. Proposed pricing for all units, including any purchaser options and add-on items.

Condominium or homeowner association fees and any other applicable fees.

Estimated real property taxes. :

Sewer, water, trash disposal, and any other utility assessments.

Flood insurance requirement, if applicable.

The State-approved planned real estate development public offering statement and/or

master deed, where applicable, as well as the full build-out budget. :

O oA wN

365-21. Enforcement of Affordable Housing Regulations
A. Upon the occurrence of a breach of any of the regulations governing the affordable unit by an
owner, developer or tenant, the municipality shall have all remedies provided at law or equity,
including but not limited to foreclosure, tenant eviction, municipal fines, a requirement for
household recertification, acceleration of all sums due under a mortgage, recoupment of any
funds from a sale in the violation of the regulations, injunctive relief to prevent further violation
of the regulations, entry on the premises, and specific performance.

B. After providing written notice of a violation to an owner, developer or tenant of an affordable unit
and advising the owner, developer or tenant of the penalties for such violations, the municipality
may take the following action against the owner, developer or tenant for any violation that
remains uncured for a period of 60 days after service of the written notice:

1. The municipality may file a court action pursuant to N.J.S.A. 2A:58-11 alleging a violation, or
violations, of the regulations governing the affordable housing unit. If the owner, developer
or tenant is found by the Court to have violated any provision of the regulations governing
affordable housing units the owner, developer or tenant shall be subject to one or more of
the following penalties, at the discretion of the Court:

i, A fine of not more than $2,000 or imprisonment for a period not to exceed 90 days, or
both, unless otherwise specified below, provided that each and every day that the
violation continues or exists shall be considered a separate and specific violation of these
provisions and not a continuation of the initial offense;

i. In the case of an owner who has rented his or her low- or moderate-income unit in
violation of the regulations governing affordable housing units, payment into the
Affordable Housing Trust Fund of the gross amount of rent illegally collected;

ii. In the case of an owner who has rented his or her affordable unit in violation of the
regulations governing affordable housing units, payment of an innocent tenant’s
reasonable relocation costs, as determined by the Court.



C. The municipality shall have the authority to levy fines against the owner of the development for
instances of noncompliance with NJHRC advertising requirements (N.J.S.A. 52:27D-
321.6.e.(2)), following written notice to the owner. The fine for the first offense of noncompliance
shall be $5,000, the fine for the second offense of noncompliance shall be $10,000, and the fine
for each subsequent offense of noncompliance shall be $15,000.

D. The municipality may file a court action in the Superior Court seeking a judgment, which would
result in the termination of the owner’s equity or other interest in the unit, in the nature of a
mortgage foreclosure. Any judgment shall be enforceable as if the same were a judgment of
default of the first purchase money mortgage and shall constitute a lien against the low- or
moderate-income unit.

1. Such judgment shall be enforceable, at the option of the municipality, by means of an
execution sale by the Sheriff, at which time the affordable unit of the violating owner shall be
sold at a sale price which is not less than the amount necessary to fully satisfy and pay off
any first purchase money mortgage and prior liens and the costs of the enforcement
proceedings incurred by the municipality , including attorney’s fees. The violating owner shall
have the right to possession terminated as well as the title conveyed pursuant to the Sheriff's
sale.

2. The proceeds of the Sheriff's sale shall first be applied to satisfy the first purchase money
mortgage lien and any prior liens upon the low- or moderate-income unit. The excess, if any,
shall be applied to reimburse the municipality for any and all costs and expenses incurred in
connection with either the court action resulting in the judgment of violation or the Sheriff's
sale. In the event that the proceeds from the Sheriff's sale are insufficient to reimburse the
municipality in full as aforesaid, the violating owner shall be personally responsible for the
full extent of such deficiency, in addition to any and all costs incurred by the municipality in
connection with collecting such deficiency. In the event that a surplus remains after satisfying
all of the above, such surplus shall be placed in escrow by the municipality for the owner and
shall be held in such escrow for a maximum period of two years or until such earlier time as
the owner shall make a claim with the municipality for such. Failure of the owner to claim
such balance within the two year period shall automatically result in a forfeiture of such
balance to the municipality. Any interest accrued or earned on such balance while being
held in escrow shall belong to and shall be paid to the municipality, whether such balance
shall be paid to the owner or forfeited to the municipality.

3. Foreclosure due to violation of the regulations governing affordable housing units shall not
extinguish the restrictions of the regulations governing affordable housing units as they apply
to the low- and moderate-income unit. Title shall be conveyed to the purchaser at the Sheriff's
sale, subject to the restrictions and provisions of the regulations governing the affordable
housing unit. The owner determined to be in violation of the provisions of this plan and from
whom title and possession were taken by means of the Sheriff's sale shall not be entitled to
any right of redemption.

4. Ifthere are no bidders at the Sheriff's sale, or if insufficient amounts are bid to satisfy the first
purchase money mortgage and any prior liens, the municipality may acquire title to the
affordable unit by satisfying the first purchase money mortgage and any prior liens and
crediting the violating owner with an amount equal to the difference between the first
purchase money mortgage and any prior liens and costs of the enforcement proceedings,
including legal fees and the maximum resale price for which the affordable unit could have
been sold under the terms of the regulations governing affordable housing units. This excess
shall be treated in the same manner as the excess that would have been realized from an
actual sale as previously described.



5. Failure of the low- or moderate-income unit to be either sold at the Sheriff's sale or acquired
by the municipality shall obligate the owner to accept an offer to purchase from any qualified
purchaser that may be referred to the owner by the municipality, with such offer to purchase
being equal to the maximum resale price of the low- or moderate-income unit as permitted
by the regulations governing affordable housing units.

6. The affordable unit owner shall remain fully obligated, responsible and liable for complying
with the terms and restrictions of governing affordable housing units until such time as title is
conveyed from the owner.

E. Itis the responsibility of the municipal housing liaison and the administrative agent(s) to ensure
that affordable housing units are administered properly. All affordable units must be occupied
within a reasonable amount of time and be re-leased within a reasonable amount of time upon
the vacating of the unit by a tenant. If an administrative agent or municipal housing liaison
becomes aware of or suspects that a developer, landlord, or property manager has not complied
with these regulations, it shall report this activity to the Division. The Division must notify the
developer, landlord, or property manager, in writing, of any violation of these regulations and
provide a 30-day cure period. If, after the 30-day cure period, the developer, landlord, or property
manager remains in violation of any terms of this subchapter, including by keeping a unit vacant,
the developer, landlord, or property manager may be fined up to the amount required to construct
a comparable affordable unit of the same size and the deed-restricted control period will be
extended for the length of the time the unit was out of compliance, in addition to the remedies
provided for in this section. For the purposes of this subsection, a reasonable amount of time
shall presumptively be 60 days, unless a longer period of time is required due to demonstrable
market conditions and/or failure of the municipal housing liaison or the administrative agent to
refer a certified tenant.

F. Banks and other lending institutions are prohibited from issuing any loan secured by owner
occupied real property subject to the affordability controls set forth in this subchapter if such loan
would be in excess of amounts permitted by the restriction documents recorded in the deed or
mortgage book in the county in which the property is located. Any loan issued in violation of this
subsection is void as against public policy.

G. The Agency and the Department hereby reserve, for themselves and for each administrative
agent appointed pursuant to this subchapter, all of the rights and remedies available at law and
in equity for the enforcement of this subchapter, including, but not limited to, fines, evictions, and
foreclosures as approved by a county-level housing judge.

H. Appeals
1. Appeals from all decisions of an administrative agent appointed pursuant to this subchapter
must be filed, in writing, with the municipal housing liaison. A decision by the municipal
housing liaison may be appealed to the Division. A written decision of the Division Director
upholding, modifying, or reversing an administrative agent’s decision is a final administrative

action.
365-22. Development Fees.
A. Purpose

1. This section establishes standards for the collection, maintenance, and expenditure of
development fees that are consistent with the amended Fair Housing Act (P.L.2024, c.2),
N.J.A.C. 5:99, and the Statewide Non-Residential Development Fee Act (C. 40:55D-8 .1
through 8.7). Fees collected pursuant to this Ordinance shall be used for the sole purpose of



providing very low-, low- and moderate-income housmg in accordance with a Court-approved
Spending Plan.

B. Basic Requirements
1. The municipality previously adopted a development fee ordinance, which established the

Municipal Affordable Housing Trust Fund.
2. The municipality shall not spend development fees until the court has approved a plan for

spending such fees.

C. Residential Development Fees
1. Imposed fees

Residential developers, except for developers of the types of development specifically
exempted below, shall pay a fee of 1.5% of the equalized assessed value for residential
development, provided no increased density is permitted. Development fees shall also be
imposed and collected when an additional dwelling unit is added to an existing residential
structure; in such cases, the fee shall be calculated based on the increase in the equalized
assessed value of the property due to the additional dwelling unit.

When an increase in residential density is permitted pursuant to a “d” variance granted
under N.J.S.A. 40:55D-70d(5), developers shall be required to pay a “bonus”
development fee of 6.0% of the equalized assessed value for each additional unit that
may be realized, except that this provision shall not be applicable to a development that
will include affordable housing. If the zoning on a site has changed during the two-year
period preceding the filing of such a variance application, the base density for the
purposes of calculating the bonus development fee shall be the highest density permitted
by right during the two-year period preceding the filing of the variance application.

Example: If an approval allows four units to be constructed on a site that was zoned for two

units, the fees could equal 1.5% of the equalized assessed value on the first two units;
and the specified higher percentage of 6% of the equalized assessed value for the two
additional units, provided zoning on the site has not changed during the two-year period
preceding the filing of such a variance application.

2. EI|g|bIe exactions, ineligible exactions and exemptions for residential development

Affordable housing developments, developments where the developer is providing for the
construction of affordable units elsewhere in the municipality, and developments where
the developer has made an eligible payment in lieu of on-site construction of affordable
units, if permitted by ordinance, or by agreement with the municipality and if approved by
a municipality prior to the statutory elimination of payments in-lieu on March 20, 2024 per
P.L.2024, c.2, shall be exempt from development fees.

Developments that have received preliminary or final site plan approval prior to the
adoption of this ordinance and any preceding ordinance permitting the collection of
development fees shall be exempt from the payment of development fees, unless the
developer seeks a substantial change in the original approval. Where a site plan approval
does not apply, the issuance of a zoning and/or building permit shall be synonymous with
preliminary or final site plan approval for the purpose of determining the right to an
exemption. In all cases, the applicable fee percentage shall be determined based upon
the development fee ordinance in effect on the date that the construction permit is issued.
No fee will be assessed on the rehabilitation of substandard units or the construction of
accessory apartments for occupancy by low- and moderate-income households.

No fee will be assessed on construction by nonprofit organizations.



v. Developers who have received preliminary or final approval prior to the effective date of
this section shall be exempt from paying a development fee uniess the developer seeks

a substantial change in the approval.

D. Non-Residential Development Fees

1. Imposition of fees
i. Within all zoning districts, non-residential developers, except for developers of the types

of development specifically exempted, shall pay a fee equal to 2.5% of the equalized
assessed value of the land and improvements, for all new non-residential construction on
an unimproved lot or lots.

ii. Within all zoning districts, non-residential developers, except for developers of the types
of development specifically exempted, shall also pay a fee equal to 2.5% of the increase
in equalized assessed value resulting from any additions to existing structures to be used
for non-residential purposes.

ii. Development fees shall be imposed and collected when an existing structure is
demolished and replaced. The development fee of 2.5% shall be calculated on the
difference between the equalized assessed value of the pre-existing land and
improvements and the equalized assessed value of the newly improved structure; i.e.,
land and improvements; and such calculation shali be made at the time a final certificate
of occupancy is issued. If the calculation required under this section results in a negative
number, the non-residential development fee shall be zero.

2. Eligible exactions, ineligible exactions and exemptions for non-residential development
i, The non-residential portion of a mixed-use inclusionary or market-rate development shall

be subject to a 2.5% development fee, unless otherwise exempted below.

ii. The 2.5% fee shall not apply to an increase in equalized assessed value resulting from
alterations, change in use within existing footprint, reconstruction, renovations and
repairs.

3. Non-residential developments shall be exempt from the payment of non-residential
development fees in accordance with the exemptions required pursuant to the Statewide
Non-Residential Development Fee Act (N.J.S.A. 40:55D-8.1 through 8.7), as specified in
Form N-RDF “State of New Jersey Non-Residential Development Certification/Exemption.”
Any exemption claimed by a developer shall be substantiated by that developer.

4. A developer of a non-residential development exempted from the non-residential
development fee pursuant to the Statewide Non-Residential Development Fee Act shall be
subject to the fee at such time as the basis for the exemption no longer applies, and shall
make the payment of the non-residential development fee, in that event, within three years
after that event or after the issuance of the final certificate of occupancy of the non-residential
development, whichever is later.

5. If a property that was exempted from the collection of a non-residential development fee
thereafter ceases to be exempt from property taxation, the owner of the property shall remit
the fees required pursuant to this section within 45 days of the termination of the property tax
exemption. Unpaid non-residential development fees under these circumstances may be
enforceable by the municipality as a lien against the real property of the owner.

E. Collection Procedures
1. Upon the granting of a preliminary, final or other applicable approval for a development, the

applicable approving authority shall direct its staff to notify the construction official
responsible for the issuance of a building permit.

2. For non-residential developments only, the developer shall also be provided with a copy of
Form N-RDF, “State of New Jersey Non-Residential Development Certification/Exemption,”



to be completed by the developer as per the instructions provided in the Form N-RDF. The
construction official shall verify the information submitted by the non-residential developer as
per the instructions provided on Form N-RDF. The tax assessor shall verify exemptions and
prepare estimated and final assessments as per the instructions provided in Form N-RDF.
The construction official responsible for the issuance of a building permit shall notify the tax
assessor of the issuance of the first construction permit for a development that is subject to
a development fee.

Within 90 days of receipt of that notice, the tax assessor shall provide an estimate, based on
the plans filed, of the equalized assessed value of the development.

The construction official responsible for the issuance of a final certificate of occupancy shall
notify the tax assessor of any and all requests for the scheduling of a final inspection on
property that is subject to a development fee.

Within 10 business days of a request for the scheduling of a final inspection, the tax assessor
shall confirm or modify the previously estimated equalized assessed value of the
improvements associated with the development; calculate the development fee; and
thereafter notify the developer of the amount of the fee.

Should the municipality fail to determine or notify the developer of the amount of the
development fee within 10 business days of the request for final inspection, the developer
may estimate the amount due and pay that estimated amount consistent with the dispute
process set forth in Subsection b. of section 37 of P.L.2008, c.46 (N.J.S.A. 40:55D-8.6).
Fifty percent (50%) of the development fee shall be collected at the time of issuance of the
construction permit. The remaining portion shall be collected at the time of issuance of the
certificate of occupancy. The developer shall be responsible for paying the difference
between the fee calculated at the time of issuance of the construction permit and that
determined at the time of issuance of certificate of occupancy.

F. Appeal of development fees

1.

A developer may challenge residential development fees imposed by filing a challenge with
the County Board of Taxation. Pending a review and determination by that board, collected
fees shall be placed in an interest-bearing escrow account by the municipality. Appeals from
a determination of the board may be made to the Tax Court in accordance with the provisions
of the State Tax Uniform Procedure Law, R.S. 54:48-1 et seq., within 90 days after the date
of such determination. Interest earned on amounts escrowed shall be credited to the
prevailing party.

A developer may challenge non-residential development fees imposed by filing a challenge
with the director of the Division of Taxation. Pending a review and determination by the
director, which shall be made within 45 days of receipt of the challenge, collected fees shall
be placed in an interest-bearing escrow account by the municipality. Appeals from a
determination of the director may be made to the Tax Court in accordance with the provisions
of the State Tax Uniform Procedure Law, R.S. 54:48-1 et seq., within 90 days after the date
of such determination. Interest earned on amounts escrowed shall be credited to the
prevailing party.

G. Affordable Housing Trust Fund

1.

A separate, interest-bearing Municipal Affordable Housing Trust Fund shall be maintained by
the chief financial officer of the municipality for the purpose of depositing development fees
collected from residential and non-residential developers and proceeds from the sale of units
with extinguished controls.

The following additional funds shall be deposited in the Municipal Affordable Housing Trust
Fund and shall at all times be identifiable by source and amount:



i. Payments in lieu of on-site construction of an affordable unit, where previously permitted
by ordinance or by agreement with the municipality and if approved by a municipality prior
to the statutory elimination of payments in-lieu on March 20, 2024 per P.L.2024, c.2;

i. Funds contributed by developers to make 10% of the adaptable entrances in a townhouse
or other multistory attached dwelling unit development accessible;

ii. Rental income from municipally operated units;

iv. Repayments from affordable housing program loans;

v. Recapture funds;

vi. Proceeds from the sale of affordable units; and

vii. Any other funds collected in connection with the municipal affordable housing program
including but not limited to interest earned on fund deposits.

3. The municipality shall provide the Division with written authorization, in the form of a tri-party
escrow agreement(s) between the municipality, the Division and the financial institution in
which the municipal affordable housing trust fund has been established to permit the Division
to direct the disbursement of the funds as provided for in N.J.A.C. 5:99-2.1 et seq.

4. Occurrence of any of the following deficiencies may result in the Division requiring the
forfeiture of all or a portion of the funds in the municipal Affordable Housing Trust Fund:

i Eailure to meet deadlines for information required by the Division in its review of a
development fee ordinance;

i. Failure to commit or expend development fees within four years of the date of collection
in accordance with N.J.A.C. 5:99-5.5;

iii. Failure to comply with the requirements of the Non-Residential Development Fee Act and
N.J.A.C. 5:99-3;

iv. Failure to submit accurate monitoring reports pursuant to this subchapter within the time
limits imposed by the Act, this chapter, and/or the Division;

v. Expenditure of funds on activities not approved by the Superior Court or otherwise
permitted by law;

vi. Revocation of compliance certification or a judgment of compliance and repose;

vii. Failure of a municipal housing liaison or administrative agent to comply with the
requirements set forth at N.J.A.C. 5:99-6, 7, and 8;

viii. Other good cause demonstrating that municipal affordable housing funds are not being
used for an approved purpose.

5 All interest accrued in the housing trust fund shall only be used on eligible affordable housing
purposes approved by the Court.

H. Use of Funds
1. The expenditure of alf funds shall conform to a Spending Plan approved by Superior Court.

Funds deposited in the municipal Affordable Housing Trust Fund may be used for any activity
approved by the Court to address the fair share obligation and may be set up as a grant or
revolving loan program. Such activities include, but are not limited to: preservation or
purchase of housing for the purpose of maintaining or implementing affordability controls;
housing rehabilitation; new construction of affordable housing units and related costs;
accessory apartments; a market-to-affordable program; conversion of existing non-
residential buildings to create new affordable units; green building strategies designed to be
cost-saving and in accordance with accepted national or state standards; purchase of land
for affordable housing; improvement of land to be used for affordable housing; extensions or
improvements of roads and infrastructure to affordable housing sites; financial assistance
designed to increase affordability; administration necessary for implementation of the
Housing Element and Fair Share Plan; and/or any other activity permitted by Superior Court
and specified in the approved Spending Plan.



2

8

Funds shall not be expended to reimburse the municipality or activities that occurred prior to

the authorization of a municipality to collect development fees.

At least a portion of all development fees collected and interest earned shall be used to

provide affordability assistance to very low-, low- and moderate-income households in

affordable units included in the municipal Fair Share Plan. A portion of the development fees
which provide affordability assistance shall be used to provide affordability assistance to very
low-income households.

i. Affordability assistance programs may include down payment assistance, security
deposit assistance, low-interest loans, rental assistance, assistance with homeowners
association or condominium fees and special assessments, infrastructure assistance,
and assistance with emergency repairs. The specific programs to be used for affordability
assistance shall be identified and described within the Spending Plan.

ii. Affordability assistance for very low income households may include producing very low-
income units or buying down the cost of low- or moderate-income units in the municipal
Fair Share Plan to make them affordable to households earning 30% or less of median
income.

No more than 20% of all affordable housing trust funds, exclusive of those collected to fund

an RCA prior to July 17, 2008, shall be expended on administration, including, but not limited

to, salaries and benefits for municipal employees or consultants’ fees necessary to develop
or implement a new construction program, prepare and implement a Housing Element and

Fair Share Plan, administer an Affirmative Marketing Program and for compliance with the

Superior Court and the Program including the costs to the municipality of resolving a

challenge.

[. Monitoring

1.

On or before February 15 of each year, the municipality shall provide annual electronic data
reporting of trust fund activity for the previous year from January 1st to December 31st
through the AHMS Reporting System. This reporting shall include an accounting of all
Municipal Affordable Housing Trust Fund activity, including the sources and amounts of all
funds collected and the amounts and purposes for which any funds have been expended.
Such reporting shall include an accounting of development fees collected from residential
and non-residential developers, previously eligible payments in lieu of constructing affordable
units on site (if permitted by ordinance or by agreement with the municipality prior to the
March 20, 2024 statutory elimination per P.L. 2024, c.4), funds from the sale of units with
extinguished controls, barrier-free escrow funds, rental income from municipally-owned
affordable housing units, repayments from affordable housing program loans, interest and
any other funds collected in connection with municipal housing programs, as well as an
accounting of the expenditures of revenues and implementation of the Spending Plan
approved by the Court.

J. Ongoing Collection of Fees

1.

The ability to impose, collect and expend development fees shall continue so long as the
municipality retains authorization from the Court in the form of Compliance Certification or
the good faith effort to obtain it.

If the municipality fails to renew its ability to impose and collect development fees prior to the
expiration of its Judgment of Compliance, it may be subject to forfeiture of any or all funds
remaining within its Affordable Housing Trust Fund. Any funds so forfeited shall be deposited
into the New Jersey Affordable Housing Trust Fund established pursuant to section 20 of
P.L.1985, ¢.222 (C. 52:27D-320).



K. Emergent Affordable Housing Opportunities. Requests to expend affordable housing trust funds
on emergent affordable housing opportunities not included in the municipal fair share plan shall
be made to the Division and shall be in the form of a governing body resolution. Any request

shall be consistent with N.J.A.C. 5:99-4 1.

SECTION 2. Any article, section, paragraph, subsection, clause, or other provision of the Code of
the Township of Mansfield inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance is hereby repealed to

the extent of such inconsistency.

SECTION 3. If any section, paragraph, subsection, clause, or provision of this ordinance shall be
adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such adjudication shall apply only to the
section, paragraph, subsection, clause, or provision so adjudged, and the remainder of this ordinance

shall be deemed valid and effective.

SECTION 4. This ordinance shall take effect as required by law.

% A%T . \\_:% ) TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
\\\;'\‘i‘xé\f‘xbﬁ ;QJQQ{_\V.\ (\\,M-L:L L ,r'( .q-éﬁ'ﬁ»
L

Wendy Barras, ToWrﬂs\hip:Municipal Clerk Honﬂlosephl\Natters, Mayor



Motion: Introduce Ordinance Moved by: Connelly ; Seconded by: Hayes
Vote: Motion carried by roli call vote (Summary: Yes=5)

Yes: Boliard, Connelly, Mc Guinness, Hayes, Watters

No:

Abstain:

Absent:

Introduced: February 11, 2026
Published: February 17, 2026
Public Hearing: March 11, 2026

Motion: Adopt Ordinance Moved by: ; Seconded by:
Vote: Motion carried by roli call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes:

No:

Abstain:

Absent:

Adopted:
Published:

CERTIFICATION

I, Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk of the Township of Mansfield, do hereby certify that the foregoing
Ordinance was duly adopted by the Township of Mansfield Committee on the day of , 2026.

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk



TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
COUNTY OF WARREN

ORDINANCE 004-2026

ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN, STATE
OF NEW JERSEY AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 296 OF THE
TOWNSHIP CODE ENTITLED STREETS AND SIDEWALKS, MOST NOTABLY, SECTION 296-1, ENTITLED

“EXCAVATING STREETS” AND SECTION 296-6 SUPERVISION ‘

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE
The purpose of this Ordinance is amend and supplement Chapter 296 of the Township Code
entitled Streets and Sidewalks, Section 296-1 Excavating Streets and Section 296-6 Supervision.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield, County of
Warren, State of New Jersey that Chapter 296 — Streets and Sidewalks most notably Section 296-1 is hereby

amended and supplemented as follows:

SECTION 1.
§296-1. Excavating Streets

C. Issuance of Permits:
Upon receipt of the application, the Township Clerk shall forward a copy hereof to the Department of Works

Superintendent and another copy thereof to the Township Engineer. The Township Engineer shall then review
the application and accompanying documents for technical completeness and if required. prepare a written
estimate setting for the amount required to restore street, road, or highway to its original condition after the
same has been excavated, opened. or tunneled in accordance with the application. and thereupon, shall
forward a copy of the review to the applicant and Township Clerk. Once the applicant has submitted
application and escrow fees as determined by the Township Engineer, has filed a performance guarantee, and
all documents as herein required to the Township, shall the Township Engineer provide signature upon the
permit, and shall authorize the Township Clerk to provide their signature to the same and shall issue the
permit. The Township Clerk shall forward a copy of the signed permit to the applicant and also to the
Department of Public Works Superintendent.

D. Application Submission Documents & Fees:
The application for a permit level one (1) shall be accompanied by a sketch or for a permit level two (2) through

six (6) an engineered plan, ersketch all, drawn to scale, of the area to be disturbed, including proposed
dimensions and restoration details, and shall be also be accompanied by the required application together with
an escrow deposit to cover engineering review and inspections of:

1. Utility service connections for approved public utilities: Application Fee: $100; Escrow Fee: $350

2. For all openings up to 50 linear feet: Application Fee: $150; Escrow Fee: $600

3. For all openings consisting of from 50 to 100 linear feet: Application Fee: $200; Escrow Fee: $600;
Plus, inspection escrow calculated by Township Engineer

4. For all openings consisting of from 100 feet to 250 linear feet: Application Fee: $250; Escrow Fee:
$1.000; Plus, inspection escrow calculated by Township Engineer.

5. For openings more than 250 linear feet: Application Fee: $750: Escrow Fee: Initial review $1,000 plus
additional will be calculated upon technical review and inspection escrow calculated by Township

Engineer.




6. For openings more than 250 linear feet: Application Fee $750; Escrow: Initial review $1.000 pius
additional will be calculated upon technical review and inspection escrow calculated by Township

Engineer.

§296-6. Supervision

The Township Engineer and/or the Department of Public Works Superintendent shall inspect or cause
to be inspected, all excavations, openings, or tunnels being made in, on or under any street in the
Township to see to the enforcement of the provisions of this article. Notice shall be given at least 48
hours to the Township Engineer and/or the Department of Public Works Superintendent before the
work of refilling any such tunnel or excavation commences.

SECTION 2. Unless otherwise set forth herein, all other terms and any applicable fees set forth in Chapter 296,
Streets and Sidewalks shall be and remain unchanged.

SECTION 3. Any ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of
such inconsistency.

SECTION 4. Severability. If any portion of this Ordinance is found to be invalid for any reason by any court of
competent jurisdiction, such judgement shall be limited in its effect only to that portion of the ordinance actually
invalidated and shall not be deemed to affect the operation of any other portion thereof.

SECTION 5. This ordinance shall take effect upon adoption and publication according to law.

ATJ;EST TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD

NAT . Olescpll La Tl

Wendy Barras, TOQ\ShI[‘)MunIClpd Clerk Hon Joseph Watters Mayor




Motion: Introduce Ordinance Moved by: Hayes ; Seconded by: Connelly
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=5)

Yes: Bollard, Connelly, Mc Guinness, Hayes, Watters

No:

Abstain:

Absent:

introduced: February 25, 2026
Published: March 3, 2026
Public Hearing: March 11, 2026

Motion: Adopt Ordinance Moved by: . Seconded by:
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes:

No:

Abstain:

Absent:

Adopted:
Published:

CERTIFICATION

|, Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk of the Township of Mansfield, do hereby certify that the foregoing
Ordinance was duly adopted by the Township of Mansfield Committee on the day of , 2026.

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk



TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
COUNTY OF WARREN

ORDINANCE 005-2026

ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN, STATE
OF NEW JERSEY AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 182 OF THE
TOWNSHIP CODE ENTITLED FEES, MOST NOTABLY, SECTION 182-3, ENTITLED “TOWNSHIP CLERK”

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE
The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend and supplement Chapter 182 of the Township Code
entitled “Fees”, most notably, Section 182-3, entitled “Township Clerk”.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield, County of
Warren, State of New Jersey that Chapter 182 Fees, Section 182-3, Township Clerk — Sub Section G. Road
Opening of the Township of Mansfield Code be amended and supplemented to include the following:

SECTION 1.

§182-3. Township Clerk
G. Road Opening:

1. Utility service connections for approved public utilities: Application Fee: $100; Escrow Fee: $350

2. For all openings up to 50 linear feet: Application Fee: $150; Escrow Fee: $600

3. For all openings consisting of from 50 to 100 linear feet: Application Fee: $200; Escrow Fee: $600; Plus,
inspection escrow calculated by Township Enginger

4. For all openings consisting of from 100 feet to 250 linear feet: Application Fee: $250; Escrow Fee: $1,000; Plus,
inspection escrow calculated by Township Engineer.

5. For openings more than 250 linear feet: Application Fee: $750; Escrow Fee: Initial review $1,000 plus additional
will be calculated upon technical review and inspection escrow calculated by Township Enlqineer.

6. For openings more than 250 linear feet: Application Fee $750; Escrow: Initial review $1,000 plus additional will be
calculated upon technical review and inspection escrow calculated by Township Engineer.

SECTION 2. Unless otherwise set forth herein, all other terms and any applicable fees set forth in Chapter 182,
Fees shall be and remain unchanged.

SECTION 3. Any ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of
such inconsistency.

SECTION 4. Severability. If any portion of this Ordinance is found to be invalid for any reason by any court of
competent jurisdiction, such judgement shall be limited in its effect only to that portion of the ordinance actually
invalidated and shall not be deemed to affect the operation of any other portion thereof.

SECTION 5. This ordinance shall take effect upon adoption and publication according to law.

A;F—'FE\T TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
\

\Bians Qe L5150

Wendy Barras, Towm\ship‘_ Municipal Clerk Horli.'Joseph Watters, Mayor

a'.//"




Motion: Introduce Ordinance Moved by: Connelly; Seconded by: Bollard
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=5)

Yes: Bollard, Connelly, Mc Guinness, Hayes, Watters

No:

Abstain:

Absent:

Introduced: February 25, 2026
Published: March 2, 2026
Public Hearing: March 11, 2026

Motion: Adopt Ordinance Moved by: : Seconded by:
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes:

No:

Abstain:

Absent:

Adopted:
Published:

CERTIFICATION

|, Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk of the Township of Mansfield, do hereby certify that the foregoing
Ordinance was duly adopted by the Township of Mansfield Committee on the day of , 2026.

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk



TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
COUNTY OF WARREN

ORDINANCE 008-2026

ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN, STATE
OF NEW JERSEY AMENDING LAND USE LEGISLATION CHAPTER 361 “GENERAL
PROVISIONS”, TO REGULATE INDIRECT HEAT EXCHANGERS ALSO KNOWN AS WOOD BOILERS
ACROSS ALL ZONING DISTRICTS

.....

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE
The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend land use legislation design and performance standards to include
provisions for indirect heat exchangers.

WHEREAS the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield (“Township”) is authorized pursuant to the
New Jersey Municipal Land Use Law, N.J.S.A 40:55D-1 et seq., to adopt zoning regulations governing the use
of land within the Township in order to promote the public health, safety, morals and general welfare; and

WHEREAS the Municipal Land Use Law expressly authorizes zoning regulations designed to Municipal Land
Use Law; and

WHEREAS the Township Committee has determined that the addition and operation of indirect heat
exchangers or wood boilers on properties across all zones in the Township has the potential to introduce
significant detrimental environmental and related quality of life impact on adjacent properties; and

WHEREAS the Township Committee believes that the installation and operation of indirect heat exchangers or
wood boilers can be conducted within acceptable standards that mitigate the potential for these 'detrimental
effects on adjacent properties; and

WHEREAS establishing such standards within Chapter 361 “Design and Performance Standards” will ensure
the proper installation and operating standards for such indirect heat exchangers or wood boilers.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINDED
by the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield, County of Warren, State of New Jersey, as follows:

Amendment to Chapter 361 — Design and Performance Standards

Chapter 361 of the Code of the Township of Mansfield, entitied “Design and Performance Standards” is hereby
amended by adding a new section, to be codified as § 361-39-1 “Indirect Heat Exchangers” as follows:

361-19-1 Indirect Heat Exchangers

A. Definitions.
As used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:
INDIRECT HEAT EXCHANGERS (also known as OUTDOOR HYDRONIC HEATERS, OUTDOOR WOOD

FURNACE or OUTDOOR WOOD-FIRED BOILERS)

A structure, equipment or fuel-burning device designed to burn wood or other solid or liquid fuels in an outdoor
installation which heats building space and/or water via the distribution, typically through pipes, of a fluid typically
water or a water/antifreeze mixture or similar heat conducting material heated in the device. It may also be a
wood or approved solid-fuel-fired water jacketed stove that provides heat and/or hot water to new or existing
stoves.

Chimineas, fireplaces and traditional wood burning stoves do not meet the definition of an indirect heat
exchanger and are not subject to this chapter.



B.

Prohibition.

No person, corporation or entity shall install, construct or operate an indirect heat exchanger furnace unless in
compliance with the provisions of this chapter.

C.

E.

SEN

ok

10.

Regulations for use.
There shall be no operation or use of an indirect heat exchanger furnace during the period from May 1

to October 1 in any year.

Indirect heat exchanger shall only be installed, or operated, on lots of minimize size of two acres.

Such furnaces must be located at least fifty feet (50°) from any side or rear yard property line and be
located at least one hundred feet (100°) from the nearest residential structure not served by the
furnace. No indirect heat exchanger furnace can be in operated in the front yard of the property on which
it is located.

Furnaces must be located no closer than thirty feet (30°) from the building it is serving.

The indirect heat exchanger furnace shall have a chimney that extends at least fifteen feet (15’) above
the ground surface and according to MSF Installation Specifications. '_

The top of the smoke stack or chimney must extend at least ten feet (10’) above the top roofline of
any neighboring residential building.

Only clean dry wood may be utilized to fire such furnace. Such wood fuel shall consist of dry, seasoned
wood or wood pellets. Coal is an allowable fuel when its combustion does not exceed the maximum
particulate emission in this section.

Particulate emissions from said furnace shall not exceed 44 pounds of particulate per one million BTUs
produced in the boiler (not delivered to the house).

Smoke emissions from indirect heat exchangers must adhere to regulations from NJ Department of
Environmental Protection, N.J.A.C. 7:47-3 (“Prohibition of Smoke from Combustion of Fuels”). Smoke
from an operating indirect heat exchanger furnace may be visible for not more than three (3)
minutes in any consecutive thirty (30) minute period.

All installations and users shall comply with all state laws, New Jersey Department of Environmental
Protection regulations, New Jersey Department of Community Affairs and New Jersey State health
regulations as well as local and County Board of Health ordinances and regulations.

Prohibited fuels.

person shall burn any of the following items in an outdoor wood-burning furnace:

CONOOAWN =

Any wood that does not meet the definition of clean, dry wood.
Garbage.

Tires

Lawn clippings or leaves.

Materials containing plastic.

Materials containing rubber.

Waste petroleum products.

Paints and paint thinners.

Chemicals

. Glossy or colored papers.

. Construction and demolition debris.

. Plywood or Particleboard.

. Salt water driftwood.

. Manure.

. Animal carcasses.

_Asphalt products.

. Treated or painted wood.

. Any substance that normally emits dense smoke or obnoxious odors.

Compliance with law.

Indirect heat exchanger must comply with all applicable laws, inciuding but not limited to local ordinances, Board
of Health regulations, and federal, state and county laws and regulations.



F. Visual emission standards.
1. In addition to adhering to NJ Department of Environmental Protection, N.J.A.C. 7:47-3 (“Prohibition of

Smoke from Combustion of Fuels”), no person shall cause or allow a smoke plume to exceed an
average of twenty-percent opacity for six consecutive minutes in any one-hour period.

2. Exception: Visible emissions may not exceed forty-percent opacity for 20 consecutive minutes during
the set-up period of a new fire. This only includes initial firing of the unit where no coal bed exists. This

exception does not apply to refueling.

G. Nuisance conditions prohibited.
No person shall operate an outdoor indirect heat exchanger in such manner as to create a public or private

nuisance.

No person shall cause or allow emissions of air contaminants to the outdoor atmosphere of such quantity,
characteristic or duration that is injurious to human, plant or animal life or to property, or that unreasonably
interferes with the comfortable enjoyment of life or property.

Notwithstanding the existence of specific air quality standards or emission limits, this prohibition applies, but is
not limited to, any particulate, fume, gases, mist, odor, smoke, vapor, toxic or deleterious emission, either alone

or in combination with others.

Municipal officials may enforce this provision according to their general authority-to-abate-nuisances’ provisions
within this chapter, the New Jersey air quality regulations as well as any other state or county applicable laws or
regulations. 361-39-1 Permit required; fee; inspection and approval.

H. Permit Authorization.

Any person or entity seeking to install and/or operate an indirect heat exchanger furnace shall first apply to the
Township of Mansfield for a permit, provide installation information and sign/date an acknowledgement that
despite installation of an indirect heat exchanger furnace per specifications and under an approved permit, does
not necessarily ensure that such furnace can be operated consistent with N.J.D.E.P. emission limitations and
those outlined in this chapter.  (“Indirect Heat Exchanger Construction Code Permit Notice and

Acknowledgement”).

At the time of filing the application, the applicant shall pay an Application fee of $250; Escrow Fee $500.

The Township of Mansfield Zoning Officer or his designee shall inspect and approve the installation and/or
operation of the furnace and shall ensure that all required permits and ordinances shall have been obtained or
met. No one may install or operate such a furnace without such approval under chapter 361-39-1.

I Permit Notice Acknowledgement.

Indirect Heat Exchanger Construction Code Permit Notice and Acknowledgement

Under the New Jersey Administrative Codes, Title 7, Chapter 27 (N.J.A.C 7:27), Air Pollution Control, the NJ
Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) regulates smoke emissions from indirect heat exchangers.
Outdoor wood boilers (OWB) and outdoor hydronic heaters (OHH) meet the definition of indirect heat
exchangers and are therefore subject to the requirements of N.J.A.C. 7: 27-3 “Prohibition of Smoke from the

Combustion of Fuels.”

Smoke from OWBs or OHHs have been known to exceed DEP’s standards. The manufacturers are not
required to label, document or otherwise disclose the quantity of smoke produced by these devices. There is
no means to predict whether a given outdoor boiler, when in use, will violate the DEP smoke emission limit.
Issuance of a Uniform Construction Code (UCC) permit does not guarantee that a unit will meet the DEP
requirements. An outdoor wood boiler that has been installed in accordance with all applicable requirements
established under the UCC may still be subject to some future enforcement action by the NJDEP, including
penalties to the vendor, installer and property owner. Operating indirect heat exchanger outside of emission
limitations established by Township of Mansfield may also subject the operator to municipal enforcement

actions.



Homeowners with questions about compliance with the emission standard are advised to contact the NJDEP
or the county health department.

| acknowledge that | have been given a copy of this Notice

Property owner or Authorized Representative Date

J. Violations and penalties.
Any person found guilty of violating the provisions of this chapter shall be subject to the following penalties:

1. First offense: a fine of $250.
Second offense: a fine not to exceed $1,000; a discretionary imposition of community service not to

exceed five days.
3. Third and subsequent offenses: surrender and dismantlement of the indirect heat exchanger furnace,

the owner being responsible for the removal and disposition thereof, a fine not to exceed $2,500 and
discretionary community service not to exceed 10 days.

This ordinance shall be enforced by the Township of Mansfield Zoning Officer and such other municipal officials
as may be authorized by law. Each day a violation exists shall constitute a separate offence.

K. Repealer
Any ordinance inconsistent with this chapter is hereby repealed, but only to the extent of such inconsistencies.

L. Effective Date
This chapter shall take effect upon final adoption and publication according to law.

ATTEST: TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk Hon. Joseph Watters, Mayor



Motion: Introduce Ordinance Moved by: ; Seconded by:
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes: -

No:

Abstain:

Absent:

Introduced:
Published:
Public Hearing:

Motion: Adopt Ordinance Moved by: ; Seconded by:
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes:

No: -

Abstain:

Absent:

Adopted:
Published:

CERTIFICATION

|, Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk of the Township of Mansfield, do hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance
was duly adopted by the Township of Mansfield Committee on the day of , 2026.

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk



TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
COUNTY OF WARREN

ORDINANCE 009-2026

ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN, STATE
OF NEW JERSEY APPROPRIATING FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $135,000.00 FOR
THE PURCHASE OF TWO POLICE VEHICLES

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE
The purpose of this Ordinance is to authorize the appropriation of funds from General Capital Reserves for the
purchase of two police vehicles

WHEREAS, there is a need for the purchase of two police vehicles;

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield, Warren County, New Jersey, as
follows:

SECTION 1. The amount of $135,000.00 is hereby appropriated from the General Capital Reserve
Account for Purchase of Police Vehicles

SECTION 2. There is no debt incurred by this Ordinance.

SECTION 3. If any section, sub-section, paragraph, sentence, or any other part of this ordinance is
adjudged unconstitutional or invalid, such judgement shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remainder

of this ordinance.

SECTION 4.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances which are inconsistent with the provisions of this
ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency.

SECTION 5. This ordinance shall take effect upon adoption and publication according to law.

ATTEST: TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk Hon. Joseph Watters, Mayor



Motion: Introduce Ordinance Moved by: ; Seconded by:
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes:

No:

Abstain:

Absent:

Introduced:
Published:
Public Hearing:

Motion: Adopt Ordinance Moved by: : Seconded by:
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes:

No:

Abstain:

Absent:

Adopted:
Published:

CERTIFICATION

I, Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk of the Township of Mansfield, do hereby certify that the foregoing
Ordinance was duly adopted by the Township of Mansfield Committee on the day of , 2026.

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk



TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
COUNTY OF WARREN

RESOLUTION 084-2026

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN, STATE
OF NEW JERSEY AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF MUNICIPAL OBLIGATIONS

WHEREAS, the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield, County of Warren, finds and declares that
certain municipal obligations have come due and are now payable; and

WHEREAS, the Township Committee further finds and declares that said obligations have been itemized on
the annexed schedules, which are hereby deemed part of this Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield, County
of Warren, State of New Jersey does hereby authorize payment of said municipal obligations, in accordance
with the recommendations of the Temporary Chief Financial Officer and the Deputy Treasurer, from the
following accounts and in the following amounts:

BILLS LIST

CURRENT - 5-01 $ 13,453.89
CURRENT- 6-01 3 1,364,115.63
FEDERAL AND STATE GRANT FUND-G-02 | $ 1,435.00
DOG FUND-T-13 $ 121.20
DEVELOPER'S ESCROW-T-14 $ 3,350.25
OTHER TRUST-T-35 % 24,706.63
TOTAL $ 1,407,182.60

Motion: Approve Resolution Moved by: ; Seconded by:

Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes:

No:

Abstain:

Absent:

I, Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk of the Township of Mansfield, in the County of Warren, State of New Jersey hereby certify this to be a true
copy of the action of the Governing Body, at its’ Regular Meeting held on March 11, 2026. Witness my hand this  day of March, 2026.

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk



10 9 8/59/7 92/50/50 SZ/0T/0T ¥ 68°C5L'T WILINI/AWIQYDY TO B 9997 NI SWYOAINN LN0 N¥NL SOOONMNL T 29£00-S¢
INFWIIVdIY WHOINA 0vLy-0000-0¥2-52-10-S
5050004¢
67750697 ££050692 * £2965897 68607897
‘72075292 ' ¥0T89992 ‘56088992 7/16£597
YTE99Y92 ' SE9EEVIT ' ZSSHTHIT THEESTIT
9T/21 - €/01 97/50/£0 97/T1/20 ¥ 00°8L SZ/9T/TT - ST/E/0T SIHSYM ¥vD HSVM HY) NOLONIHSYM SO00HSYM T £9700-9¢
JINYNILNIVW ITDIHIA 0€£v-0000-0%¢-5¢-T0-S
G7/ST/TT a3uIanay
g 99597 97/50/50 Sz/ct/T ¥ 00°0ST SIDIAYIS "40¥d 88E9T ‘ANI *3'd NODOW AHAUNW SOQHA¥NW /  TTT00-S¢
AINYOLLY 09¥¥-0000-08T-TZ-T0-§
0576859
(LN3IWAVd
WILivd) (SW3) Sz/81/¢1 - S¢/1/T
QYIONFY SIDIAYIS "40¥d §/000ET “ANI
8 9/000€T 92/50/50 S¢/¥/TT ¥ 05°/L6 AINYOLLY IDT74NOD “dML SZ07  ONIY § HLIWS ‘IDI¥d "YONIHIS SOONIHDS T¢ 0£200-52
(L1¥n0> G3uvHS) S7/62/T1 B ST/v/iT
QIYIONTY SIDIAYIS “40¥d £/9TOET "ANI
8 £L9T0ET 97/50/¢0 St/ve/tT ¥ 00°56¢°T AINHOLLY IDIT4NOI "dML SZ07 “ONIN B HLIWS ‘IDI¥d “MONIHDS SOONIHIS 07 0£200-S¢
(ININAYd TWIL¥Vd)
(SMoQv3W Q3THSNYW) S2/67/2T - S7/10/21
QYIONTY SIDIAYIS *40¥d £/0000ST “ANI
8 11000€T 92/50/50 Se/vt/T ¥ 00" €Ty AINYOLLY 1DITANOD “dML G707 ‘ONIX § HLINS ‘IDIdd ‘MONIHDS SOONIHDS 6T (0£200-57
SIDIAYIS T¥93T 00€%-0000-55T-02~-10-¢
8 81556 97/50/£0 97/62/10 ¥ 00°08€‘T G207 "¥1D HLy 8/5S6 "ANI SIDTAYIS VIV¥O NOILDY S000ILIY € T6000-S7
SIDIAYIS T10¥AYd S¥Ty-0000-0€T-02-T0-§
I ENTERRT :pun4
adAL 9)L0AUT 91B( 31eQ 9leg Ju3 v_submum Junoury co.EQ_.Lummo W91l JOPUIA WRlT PI "0°d
0d PLOA/YUD pAY 1S4 L4 U0 13d14ds3Q 1Un0d2y
ON :122v78ns [e101gns ON :1d30 [e3030NS ON ¥dv) |e101gns ON :)ea.g abed 1d3q
[V :SJOpuA
A 1paiafipng-uoN apn|uI 15701 1SJL4 :3buey pI ydieg paxy
A aduex3 A «3Yl0 A '91R1S A ipLE 2777-7777-777-77-77-9 01 1SJ14-§ :abupy
APAdY N iAdy A pIRH S910N W1l JULT YILM | Le3ad :lewlod
N ipled N :PLOA N :uado A $S3Un022Y 1/9 B ‘anuaAlY ‘eyd|y JuLldd [y :3dAL *0'd
Unody 13bpng Ag 1517 || 18 Wd £0:20
T 0N 3fed dTHSNMOL Q13TASNVW

9207 “TT YoJeH



97/%0/t 97/50/£0 92/%0/50 ¥ 0009 SPDIAYIS I 97/%0/2 IDDIL WYINTIIM SEQIMIM T £T¢00-9¢
97/11/T 97/50/¢0 92/%0/€0 ¥ 000021 SIDIAYIS 3T 97/11/1 21203170 Hd3SOC S00G3IzA 7 0T200-92
97/02/1 9¢/50/£0 92/20/£0 ¥ 00°0¢T SDHIAIS I 97/07/¢ 11703170 H4ISOC §00Q3TZ0 T (T200-97
97/11/1 97/50/€0 92/20/50 ¥ 007071 SIITAYIS 334 97//1/T NYWDIE WAVW SO0DMYW 7 60200-97
9¢/T/1 9¢/50/£0 92/0/£0 ¥ 007081 SIIIAYIS I3 97/7/1 NYWND38 WaVW GO0DINVN T 60200-97
97/81/1 97/50/¢0 92/97/20 4 00709 SIDIAYIS 3343 97/91/1 Y3173IMA0Y WYITIIM QTOITIM T ¢0200-9¢
97/81/1 97/50/€0 92/97/20 ¥ 00109 SIIIAYIS 33343y 97/81/7 ITIIAVSNNOY FTAY SO0¥ITAY T T0Z00-9¢
97/81/1 97/50/¢0 92/57/20 ¥ 0009 SIDIAYIS I 97/97/7 AT4380 INTTYUVW S00T¥IE0 S 06T00-97
9¢/71/1 97/50/£0 92/S2/0 ¥ 00707 SIS T4 97/71/T AT4380 INITIVW S00THIE0 ¥ 06T00-9¢
97/01/2 92/50/€0 92/S¢/0 d 00709 SIIAYIS I3 97/0T/2 AT4380 INITHYW SOOTHAEO0 € 06T00-9¢
9¢/0¢/1 97/50/¢0 92/51/70 ¥ 0009 SIAYIS I 97/05/1 ATY380 INITAVW SO0THIE0 7 06T00-97
97/8¢/1 92/50/¢0 92/57/20 ¥ 0009 SIIAYAS 334 97/97/1 ATY380 INTTHYIW G00TY380 T 06T00-97
TIva13Nsve CT0E-0000-02£-8¢-T0-9
05°£98°7
(S207) ONIQIING TVdIDINAMW
ISTHOYAWOD ALTYNId 334 TYNNNY
9TPP909TTZ 9¢/50/€0 92/50/¢0 ¥ 00°87C'T 9TPP90-9TTZ # NOILVYLSIDIY AISY3C MIN 40 ILVLIS ‘¥IUNSYIUL OFOSYIYL §  77200-9¢
(6207) SYYOM D178nd 40 LNIWL¥vd3a
ISTNOYANOD ALTYNI 334 TWANNY
7251209112 97/50/50 92/50/¢0 ¥ 0S6TT'T PZSTL0-9TTZ # NOILVYLSIDIY AISYAC MIN 40 3LVIS ‘¥IuNSYIUL OpOSYIUL T 72700-07
JONYNTINIVW 18 00v¥-0000-0T£-92-T0~S
1OVHINDD 3LVIS [N
(SY¥3a70H 9vW 379n0d ‘NOLYE
‘QyvggvdS "¥3AT0H LHDIT “¥3IQTOH IDVW
“¥3d33N ‘SLMOHS'SIWTHS-1 ‘SLYIHSLYIMS
‘SLTY ONINVATD NNO S3ISSYTD ONILOOHS
‘SH4NW ¥v3 ‘AVYAS DNINIVYL ‘311108
YILVM CSA4NDANYH ‘ILTIHSYT4 9ve 10YLVd
‘oyg 0DYUYD ‘LYOONIVY ‘13NDOVL ‘SIOHS
51009 “SYJ0S 'SL138 ‘¥va 3IIL ‘3IIL ‘SLVH
SIYIHS ‘SINVd ‘ILvTd INYN) SYFINIITVA
NYA OT¥VC ¥04 ¥YID NV SWHO4INN INSSI ‘
paNULIL0) INIWIIVTY WHOAINN 0%£7-0000-0vZ-52-10-6
adAL 3LOAUT 918Q 81 9184 U3 NYD/1LIS Unomy U0L3014353Q Wa1 JOPUIA WAIT PI '0'd
0d PLOA/YD pAY 1541 uoL3dL4d53Q 1UNn0ddY
Un0d2y 3abpng Ag 1sL1 (|18 Wd £0:70
7 ‘0N abeg

dTHSNMOL GT3TASNYM 9707 'TT YoJeu



£0°5EE'6

- . (INIWAYd vILdvd) (Sw3) 9Z/0€/T - 9Z/9/1

3¥IANIY SIDIAYIS *40Ud §/000ET "ANI
g 9/000€T 92/50/£0 92/0¢/10 ¥ 00°€T6'S AINYOLLY 1D174NOD “dML 9707 ‘ONIN 9 HLINS ‘IDI¥d “YINIHIS SOONIHIS € £0T00-97

INIWAYA TYILYYd

(Q13TISNYW LY SMoavaw) 9z/0€/T - 92/t/1

Q3YIANTY STDIAYIS "40Ud Z/000ST “ANI
g LL000ET 97/50/¢0 92/0¢/10 ¥ ey AINYOLLY IDTT4NOD “dML 920 ‘ONI) B HLIWS ‘3DI¥d “YONIHDS SOONIHDS 7  E0T00-97
SIIIAYIS 1¥931 00£#-0000-65T-02-T0-9

6L 179§ .
AA) 97/50/€0 92/5¢/%0 ¥ 0075.T¢ JLISEIM 31¥adN 77Z0T “ANI TIDISYD LL0DS SO0INSYD 7 £6100-97
LdT¥S IINVITWOD Vav 38ISSTIIY
{201 97/50/¢0 92/52/20 ¥ 00°76¢ 3IHL 40 NOILYYDIINI 7ZZ0T 'ANI TIDISY LLODS SOOINSYD T £6T00-9¢
LYT/T - 92/1/T (ALIS-93M)
90201 97/50/¢0 92/02/10 ¥ GL090°¢ FONYNIINIYW TYONNY 90Z0T ANI TIINSYD 110DS SOOINSYD T 76000-97
¥3S 1¥0ddNS ¥3LNdWOD 0607-0000-0+T-02-10-9
g 60£96 92/50/¢0 9Z/17/10 4 8 vy 92/07/7 T10¥AVd  60£56 "ANI SIIIAYAS YI¥Q NOILIY GQ0OILIY §  €/000-9¢

SIDIAYIS T10YAVd §yT¥-0000-0£T-0¢-10-9

82/21/T - 91/6/1
g 9¢/21/T - 6/1 97/50/£0 9¢/0T/20 ¥ 00'42e'L 9707 SIDIAYIS 04D AYVHOdWIL 717 "SHOSIAQY WdC S00QvWdC & §2000-97

SIOIAYIS TYNOISSIH0dd 8¢T¥-0000-0€T-02-10-9

92/81/9 - 97/61/¢ WiNY
BY1T 92/50/¢0 97/L1/10 ¥ 00°S¥E ANTHOYW 39Y1S0d 8Y7TT "ANI D71 “SNOILATOS SSINISNG LS SO0NSHLS T §9T00-97

FONYNIINIVW HOVW 321440 (90%-0000-00T-0¢-T0-9

N4 LNHYND Jpuny
68" €Sy €T 1 e0L JeaA
68" €Sp €T NNd LNI¥¥ND :[BI0L pund
00°0¢T'T
9¢/11/t 97/50/€0 97/¥0/€0 i 00709 SIDIAYIS I 97//1/7 IDDIL WITIIM SEOINIM ¢ LT00-9C
PaNULILOD TIvaL3xsve ST0€-0000-0£E-82-T0-€
adAL 3J10AUT a1eq 31eQ 338Q U3 NYD/ILIS  JUnowy uoL1dLidsaq wel JOPUA UWRIT PI '0°d
0d PLOAYD pAY 18414 uoL1dLJ2s3q 103y
1un0ddy 13bpng A8 1517 || L8 Wd £0:20

¢ 10N 3fed dTHSNMOL QT3I4SNYW 9207 'TT YdJew



68" EvE'T

6809089£T9 97/50/¢0 92/£0/€0 ¥ T0°0F  W¥3WvD 0D OTHY 6809089€T9 ANI SSITIHIM NOZI¥IA SO0ZI¥IA €  71200-97
9z/€/¢ - 91/¥t/t
6909089¢T9 97/50/€0 92/£0/€0 ¥ 90°82¢ SQ¥YD ¥IV 6809089€T9 "ANI SSITIUIM NOZIWIA SO0ZI¥3A ¢ ¢T1200-9¢
97/¥1/¢ - 91/51/T
L9605Y£00T00 92/0/50 92/92/20 ¥ 78S L3N3HLI £P6OSHEOOTO0 *ANI LSYIHOD OTOVIWOD T S8T00-92
TONYNTINIVW HOVW 301440 090%-0000-072-52-10-9
97/02/t 92/50/¢€0 92/52/20 ¥ 00°0%2 S1008 “WI¥ ONIHLOT) 97/02/7 WO M AUVHIVZ SOOVHOVZ T #6T00-9¢
ONINYITY WHOAINN TYNLIVYLNGD 070£-0000-0%2-52-10-9
90"6¥6' 921
9707 HOUYW SH3gWaW aI¥TLITA
9707 HOYVW 97/50/€0 92/20/€0 ¥ £07 €S8 TS SLI4INIE HLIV3H Q0TS0 aI A3SY¥3C MIN 40 ILVLS OTTILVLS 7 80200-97
9707 HOYYW SYIBWIW IATLDY
9207 HYY¥WW 97/50/£0 92/20/¢0 ¥ £0°960'pL SLI4INIS HLTVaH 0ETS0 QI A3S¥IC MIN 40 ILVLS Q7TILYLS T 80700-97
diW3 IDONVANSNI dNnO¥D 0£5¥-0000-02Z-€2-10-9
§2"395
- (VIN3Y WYIL LYOHS) 97/SZ/T HONOUHL
QWIONTY STOIAYIS *40¥d ZTS0PTT “ANI
8 {180%1T 97/50/¢0 92/60/20 ¥ 007526 SIIAYIS Q¥y08 ISN QN1 9707 NOISIU B ONIIINIONI S¥IITI0D OTOITI0D £  9ET00-9
("m0
TWINTY WYIL LMOHS) S7/T€/TT HONOWHL
QIYIANTY STOIAYIS "40¥d 77S/ETT "ANI
g LTSLETT 97/50/€0 92/60/20 ¥ SLEp SIDIAYIS (¥V08 ISN ONYT 9707 NOISIA B ONIYIINIONI S¥IITI0) OTOITI0D ¢ 9€T00-92
YINNYTd TVIDINNW 08%+-0000-08T-T¢-10-9
(ONIL3IW 94034 aNILLY
% $334 MOYDSI SSNISIA) 97/€7/T HONOUHL
GYIANTY SIDIAYIS *404d 06ITTZ ANI
069117 97/50/50 92/52/20 ¥ 05267 SIDIAYIS QUV08 3SN NV 9707 "INI ‘ONI¥IINIONI 113IMS08 S00IMS08 7 #ET00-97
IDTAYIS INTYIINIONI 0/¥¥-0000-08T-TZ-10-9
97/92/7 (NOLONIYYYH A3SYD) ONINIVAL
155820280 97/50/50 92/61/20 ¥ 00°56 AYOLVONYA 756870780 "ANI STYIDI440 ONINNYId N S00DI440 T 9/100-97
ONINIVYL 00T-0000-08T-TZ-10-9
adAL 3IL0AUT 31eQ 91BQ 9180 JUF NYD/1BIS  Junowy UoL3dLJIS3q WALl JOpUSA WR1I PI "0'd
0d PLOA/YYD pAY  2SJLd U0 134143530 1Un0ddY
unoddy 3abpng Ag 1sL7 | (L8 Wd /0:20
y 0N 3bed dTHSNMOL @T3T4SNVW

9207 “TT 2.



£ ML

AFIQUATADAAT 92/50/50 92/92/20 ¥ 66°SS LHOIT Q0074 APIQUATAHAT SIIAYIS TYLIdYD NOZYWY QTOOZYWY 7 £0700-97
T N1
APOQUATADLAT 97/50/¢0 92/97/10 ¥ 8666 g8 APGQUATADAAT SIDIAYIS WLIdYD NOZYWY OTOOZYWY T £0700-97
G YNuL
C¥95D4EADIAT 92/50/£0 92/47/70 ¥ 66°SE YOV T00L QNVH [HOpDAEQOYAT SIDIAYIS TVLIdYD NOZYWY (TOOZYWY T  98T00-97
7 UL
dATT68. 9¢/50/€0 92/81/20 ¥ 17791 IN3A QOOH dATTG8/ "ANI S3TYS IMYL I773T48YY TOTHEY T €/100-97
0zyy 97/50/€0 92/81/20 ¥ G767 ONIAdIHS Zp0Thy *ANI NI ‘SLONA0Yd NOSYIANIH OTOIONIH € T/T00-97
/ YL
4y 92/50/€0 92/81/70 ¥ SE/9 437dN0D 3TN Zh0Cky “ANI *INI ‘S1ONC0¥d NOSYIONIH QTOIANIH 7 T/T00-9¢
YL
{v0eyy 97/50/€0 92/91/20 4 098°/9 < Y3dN0Y 34 Zp0Zy CANI "ONI ‘S1ONQ0¥d NOSY¥3IANIH QTOIONIH T  T/100-97
8 YINUL
g 6000£ . 97/90/€0 92/20/¢0 ¥ 96°TS QINT4 GAH 6000§. ‘ANI SLdvd OLNY W 9 D SOOLNYWD €T 6/000-97
(3 YonyL) arni4
g £9667L 92/50/£0 92/20/50 ¥ 86°6b ONTY33LS ¥IMOd 9667/ "ANI SLavd OLNY W @ 3 SO0LNYWD 7T 6£000-9¢
g 0L£6¢L 9¢/50/£0 92/20/50 4 /698 8 MOMYL 3SOH XIN8 0LE67L "ANI SLdvd OLNY W 8 3 SO0LNYWD TT 62000-9¢
(8 ML) aInt4
g 9TE6L 92/50/¢0 92/20/50 a4 86°6F ONIYIILS ¥IM0d 9TE6ZL ANI SLMvd OLNY W § 2 SO0LNYWD 0T 62000-9¢
g 9TE67L 9¢/50/¢0 92/£7/10 4 06799 T OMIL 430714 73nd 9TEGCL ANT SLHvd OLNY W D S00LNYWD 6  62000-9¢
d 9T1€62! 97/50/€0 92/£7/10 4 66°¢C T MONYL ¥3L7T4 7304 9TE6Z/ ANI SL¥vd OLNY W B O S00LNYWD §  62000-9¢
(8 YonyL) aIn14
g 16l 92/50/€0 92/£7/10 ¥ 96°/¢ ONIY3ILS ¥IMOd 7/767L 'ANI SLyvd OLNY W B O SO0LAYWD /  6£000-9¢
SIYIL @ HIVAIY FONYNILNIVW oML 050$-0000-062-92-10-9
00" $2T°T
(1735SNY 31773) IONININGD
0£6Y 92/50/¢0 97/21/20 ¥ 00°66¢ "0'¥*3"1 9207 086h "ANI ONI "Q'V'3°7 S00IG¥IT T TST00-97
(QIWNODOW " W)
97/0€/€ (13¥NVT “Lw) SINDINHDAL MIIA
6869-97 92/50/£0 92/20/20 ¥ 00°0S¢ -¥3INT IAILDI443 6§69-97 “ANI INIWIDHOINT MY 00090018 $00000T8 T £0T00-97
(DY) '9)
. 9¢/St/¢
- 97/€2/¢ (CN 'NMOLSTYYOW) ¥3D1440
6967 97/50/50 92/20/20 ¥ 00°SLE ONINIVYL Q1314 DISYE 6967 *ANI QT3I4 40 NOILVIDOSSY TYNOILYN QpQOLLYN T  90T00-97
ONINIVYL 00T#-0000-0%¢-52-T0-9
mﬁ;._. 9) .S>cH 918q 91eQ 31eq Jud v_;v\pmum junouwy co_.ua LJISaQ Wall Lcncw> Wall pI ‘0'd
0d PLOA/YUD PAJY 1S4 L4 uoL1dLJ43s3q 1UN022Y
1Un02y 13bpng Ag 3SL7 || L8 Wd £0:20
¢ :0N 3fied dIHSNMOL QTITASNVW

9207 'TT YyJen



9¢/97/T - 9/1/T ONDIDVAL

g £SS€20000vE€ 9z/50/€0 97/91/10 ¥ 0975, ITDIHIA LSSELO000PEE *ANT NOZI¥3A SZ0ZT¥3A € (€000-97
NOHdATAL 000¢-0000-0£p-T€-10-9
92/50/€0 92/50/€0 LA AV 665-¥6/-£00-00T "LV T9d2C §0007d3C OT  €2200-9¢
ONILHOTT SISNIdX3 dIHSNMOL 0102-0000-0€-82-10-9
06" €6y
26065T 97/50/50 92/L1/20 ¥ $970T SIV8 YOY18 Z606ST "ANI  ANVAWOD AddNS % ¥3dvd N311¥ STONITWW T $0700-92
$4000 414
8yThLd 97/50/£0 92/92/20 ¥ 00°p2E NMOQ d0¥Q 7 1S3L 78¥TH/4 *ANI "ONI '*0D JTYNAKOD “Y'S GO0WODVS T 6T00-97
WOO¥LS3Y 3D170d
£80£9T 97/50/€0 92/02/20 ¥ 86T IOV JTLYIYMW £80E9T "ANI *INI ATddNS NIT S00NSNIT 7 78100-9¢
WOO¥LS3¥ 3D110d
780697 92/50/€0 92/02/20 ¥ 66766 LT TWNT¥N Z80£9T *ANI *INI A1ddNS NIT S00NSNIT T  Z8100-97
(WOOYLSTY DT10d) ¥INIAO
£0829T 97/50/£0 97/T1/20 ¥ 6001 NIVYQ QIDV Z0 7€ L0879T 'ANI "ONI AddNS NI SOONSNIT 7 $¥T00-97
IINVNIINIVW Q18 00¥¥-0000-0T€-92-10-9
96" 766 67
INIHLSNCQY
896/0T 92/50/€0 97/¥/20 ¥ 200 L1795 0¥ §9/60T *ANI "ONI “17¥S DIINYILY SOONVILY S 98000-97
66€290°€2£90°7€€£90 076990 668990
'£68990° 768990068990 ‘0£7990 627990
*£75990°92¥990 " $2#990-97 (S)1INIL
896.0T 92/50/¢0 9¢/¥2/20 ¥ 717710 1S %004 §9260T *ANI "ONI ‘LS JTINVILY SOONVILY ¥ 98000-97
900990000990 $66590-97 (S)LINIL
6TZ60T 97/50/£0 97/¥/20 ¥ 787786'S 1S %20¥ 6TZ60T "ANI "ONI ‘1S DTINVILY SOONVILY £  98000-97
LTYS QY0¥ - MONS 0125-0000-T67-92-10-9
dind WNIDTYD
£0879T 97/50/€0 9¢/11/20 ¥ 66°9T 113 SSYd8 £0929T “ANI "ONI ATddNS NIT SOONSNIT T #$100-9¢
3ATHOTH) WRIDTW) T025-0000-T62-92-10-9
61" 256
8TTTL700¢ 97/50/¢0 92/%0/€0 ¥ 676§ “1vD §°¢ 430 §TTTL700¢ "ANI NY1d LIQ34) ATddNS ¥OLIVAL SO0LOVHL T 9T200-92
PanuULIu0) STHIL B MIVdIY FONVNILNIVA YON¥L 0505-0000-062-92-10-9
mga 9 LOAUT 31e(d 9]1eQ 91eqQ du3 v_;u\umum junouy co_.ua.r,_ummo WalI JOPUBA WRlI PI "0°d
0d PLOA/MYD pAY 15414 uoL1dLJ3s3Q 1Un02Jy
1Un0ddy 13bpng Ag IsL1 || L8 Wd £0:20
g 0N 3bed dTHSNMOL QT3TASNYH

9200 “TT y2Jew



MdQ - ST¥9 96f - 97/97/7 A¥IAITIA

8 89¢€TT 97/90/€0 97/91/10 ¥ 90Tl MdQ 713S3IC 8YEETT "ANT NI ‘710 T304 TYNOLLYN SHOOILWN 9  $£000-97
135310 1304 0/8%-0000-0¢F-T€-10-9
£6°€9p'¢
DI - ST $S - 97/07/7 AYIAITIC
8 S05¥6T 97/50/€0 92/0¢/10 ¥ (87801 D10 - INTTOSYY SOSHET "ANI "ONI ‘0D HLMOS 73N4 €S $003n4CS 0T  7#000-97
DI04 - SV €89 - 97/€T/7 A¥IAIIIQ
g S6hY6T 97/50/£0 92/07/10 ¥ 0T ShE'T DI - INTTOSYD SEPYET “ANI "INI ‘0D HLNOS 13n4 S §003N4CS 6 Z#000-97
Mda - STV £°00€ - 9¢/52/7 A¥IAINC
i £09v61 97/0/¢0 9¢/07/10 d /y009 Md@ - 3NITOSYD £09¥6T "ANI NI ‘0D HLNOS 713nd €S SQ0INACS §  7000-97
WdQ - ST¥O €' /b7 - 97/§/7 A¥IATT30
g 6661 92/90/£0 92/02/10 4 L0 MdQ ~ INITOSYD 66/E6T "ANI "DNI ‘0D HLNOS 130d4-€S §003N4LS £ 75000-97
PI0d - ST¥9 §°€8% - 97/£/7 AYIAITIA
g 86/56T 92/50/£0 92/02/10 ¥ U6 DI04 - INITOSYY 86LE6T "ANI NI ‘02 HLNOS 73nd €S §00INACS § 7400097
INITOSYD/13nd 0T/#-0000-0¢¥-T¢-10-9
6."078
97/50/€0 92/50/£0 ¥ 90709 £6£-0T0-000-007 "LV AL S0007dDC 6 £7200-97
92/50/¢0 92/50/50 a4 TE90T b82-€08-7v0-007 LoV TdOC S0007dDC §  £7200-9¢
97/50/¢0 92/50/€0 ¥ W yS9-¥8¥-£00-00T LDV WL S0007dIC £ £2200-97
92/50/¢0 92/50/¢0 ¥ 98y £7L-9v6-8€0-00T " LoV TdIC S0007dDC 9 £7200-97
92/50/¢0 92/50/50 4 99 L{T-66¢-%00-00T "LV TdOC S0007dDC §  €7200-9
92/90/£0 92/50/¢0 ¥ 9 pTE-E€€-700-00T "LOV T9dIC 500070 ¥ €2200-9¢
97/90/¢0 92/50/¢0 ¥ #1198 3OV4YY 607-#00-850-00T "LV T9dIC S000TdOC € £7200-97
97/50/€0 92/50/¢€0 ¥ 99y ¥08-662-¥00-00T *L1¥ 19dIC S0001dXC 7 £2200-97
97/50/£0 92/50/¢0 ¥ 69y 008-£€2-0%0-00T "LV WA 500070 T £7200-9¢
JT¥103713 0Zvy-0000-0¢¥-T1E-T0-9
5078 NNW - ST¥9 67897 - 97/§/7 AYIAITAC
g ¥6.E6T 92/50/¢0 92/02/10 ¥ 66771/ 710 ONILYAH Z# $6/E6T "ANI "INI ‘02 HLNOS 134 €S S003n4CS 0T TH#000-97
ONILYIH/TI0 13n4 0T¥¥-0000-0¢#-T€-T0-9
6899
6309089¢€T9 92/50/50 92/£0/50 d PT7E6S £2/T - v1/T 6809099€T9 *ANI SSITIUIM NOZIY3A SO0ZI¥IA T 71700-9¢
paNULILOD INOHdIT3L 000%-0000-0¢p-T€-T0-9
adAL 3ILOAUT 9100 91BQ U3 NYD/1P1S lunouy UoL1dL4253Q WalT JOPUBA WYL PI "0°d
0d pAYY  1SJL4 uoL1dLJ353a 1Un0dIY
1Un02dy 18fpng A9 1517 || L8 Wd /0:20
[ 10N 3fed dIHSNMOL QTITASNVW

9207 ‘1T y2Jew



00°§€2'T

Y¥3LLTT
 QUVAYDVE ¥NOA NI SONE LNOSY ONIONIS
@ WIS B aved LSYId
9¢/5/¢ 92/50/£0 97/50/¢0 4 00°STY T00HDS QTITASNYIW 97/5/¢ JA0Q 'S YNVIQ § "W 1¥390¥ S0033A0Q T T2Z00-9¢
YILLIT
B 34IICTIM ¥ILNIM [N LNOEY ONIONIS
SNOILYINISTYA ¥ILNTD T¥VD AVO IINITHIX3
9¢/12/t 92/90/€0 92/50/¢€0 ¥ 007009 ONIN¥VIT FHL 97/12/T IN0C *S YNVIO § W L¥380¥ §0033A00 T 07200-97
ISNIdXT STTLINAWANOD NvITD 0896-00£0-68Z-T¥-20-9

N4 INVYD 31VIS ONY Tv¥3a3 pun4
£9"STT¥9¢'T 112101 JeaA
€9°CTTP9€'T ONN4 LNF¥¥ND @ |B30L pung

8 9707 HOYVH 9/50/£0 92/50/20 ¥ 80°820°6¢€S 9207 HOYYW AATT XYL 9707 '3 40 "9 dIHSNMOL GTITISNVN SpOISNWW & 70000-9¢

319VAVd SIXVL T00HIS 0000-0000-£0¢-55-10-9

97/ST/€ 3na HOYY
g 9207 HOUVMW 97/50/€0 9¢/50/20 ¥ 7P E0E'TE9 XYL 1DTH1SIA TYNOI9FY 9707 O3 40 Q8 TYNOIIY STTIH NIuAwM QSTIUMVM ¢ £0000-97

J18VAVd S3IXVL 100HOS TYNOIDIY 0000-0000-902-95-T0-9

0QvSoY SA 31V1S
g 92/v1/T 92/50/€0 92/1/20 ¥ 00762 97/¥7/ ¥3N3430 2178Nd 9207 ONT¥VH "C Q¥NOQ OTONI¥VH [ €5000-9¢

dv]) SO JSIW ¥3ANI430 JI78nd #00¢-0000-56¥-€-10-9

92/02/1
“97/€T/T *97/9/T QF¥3INIY SIDIAYIS "40¥d
g 9707 AYYINYC 92/50/50 92/05/10 ¥ 00°002'T Y0LMDISOUd TYAIDINAW 9707 L¥IFTY 'M NWWYON 40 3DT440 Myl S0040MYT 7 00T00-97

SISN3dX3 ¥3H10-¥01NJ3S0¥d dI78Nd 100¢-0000-S6%-Ev-10-9

97/LT/7 ¥3LIUYIIN
91TZ-9720 92/50/€0 92/%0/50 ¥ 00992 HSINVAS 9TTZ-9720 *ANI ¥3LFUAYIINT ‘Z3TWZNOD D W31 S00IVAIT T §T200-9¢

H313UdHIINT VIS0 LHN0D 0TSS-0000-Tov-E-T0-9

adAL IOAUT  33BQ  31BQ IIBQ JUI HYD/ILIS  IUnomy uoL3dL4IS3q WALI JOPUIA WAL PI "0'd
0d PLOA/NY  pAXY 15414 toL1d13s3q N0y
1un0ddy 13bpng Ag 1sL7 || 18 Wd 20:70

9 :oN abeq dIHSNMOL QT3TSNVW 9207 'TT Y2Jew



9€950T

L69TT¢

869TT¢

90660¢

TATTANL

9¢0¢ "834

(20t

9/%0/0 ST/ ¥ 0Lp59°8T
T
92/50/€0 9¢/11/20 4057289
92/50/£0 92/11/20 400989
92/50/£0 92/92/10 ¥ SLUUS'T
92/50/£0 92/20/20 4 007078
0¢'Ter
92/50/£0 92/£0/¢0 ¥ 00T
00°SEr'T
00°SEP'T
92/50/£0 97/52/20 4 0000¢

"606750 62750 82LYS0" TELYSO 0€L¥S0
1290129950 €29950°699950 (S)LIDIL
1795 004 9€90T *ANI NI *L7vS JTINVILY SOONVILY 7 09600-SC
TPAOWY MONS ¥04 3A¥3STY  7000-0000-682-55-S€-1

LSNYL ¥3HLO0 pund

MO¥DST S,¥3d0TIA3Q [[BIOL pund

97/§7/T HONO¥HL Q3¥IANTY
SIITAYIS "40¥d /69TT7 "ANI NI ‘ONTYIINIONI 173MS08 G003MS08 T £9T00-9¢
MOYIST AVMIATYA / TTONY SYAOHL 7S / ¥AN 0000-7899-682-95-+T-L

92/£7/T HONO¥HL Q3YIONTY
SIDIAYIS "40¥d §69TT7 "ANI "ONI ‘ONT¥IINIONI 173MS08 S00IMS08 ¢ £9T00-97
MOYIS3 AVMIAING / TIONY SYWOHL b / AN 0000-¥8£9-697-95-4T-L

62/87/TT HONOYHL CIYIAN3Y
SIIAYIS "404d 906607 "ANI "INI 'ONTYIINIONI T73IMS08 S00IMS08 T 66T00-9¢
TONVIYVA/ISNOH 100d/¥IANIANT NYA TIINVC 0000-2£07-682-95-#T-L

§Z/€7/TT HONOYHL GIYIANTY
SIDIAYIS “40¥d £7SSZIT "ANI  NOISIA @ ONIYIINIONI S¥ITTI0D OTOITI0D T S0T00-97
20-57 ¥¥A 3SN/Ny1d ILIS/Q¥v1108 TIVHDIW 0000-7T07-687-95-#T-L

MOWIS3 S, ¥3d0TIAIC pun4
QN4 900 :[®10L puns
$334 ISNIDIT 900 9707 '934 HLTV3H 40 INIWLYYA3Q N STOA3OIN T TT1200-9¢
JI7T 900- N 0L 3n@ 0000-0000-€£-99-£T-1
aNnd 900 pun4
}[BI0L JBIA
ONN4 INVHD 3LYLS ONY Tv¥3Q34 :[el0L pund
3LIS83M LYAdN 77201 "ANI TIDISYY 1105 GOOTNSYO §  €6T00-97

JOVNNOL ONITIAIIY 1695-00£0-68¢-T¥-20-2

adAL 3) L0AUT 31eq 338Q 338Q JUI YD/IBIS Junouy uoL3dLJIS3Q WAl JOpuaA WRI PI *0°d
0d PLOA/PD PAJY  1SdLd uoLdLJ2$3q 1UN022Y
un0ddy Jabpng Ag 1sL7 || L8 Wd £0:20
6 0N 3bed

dIHSNMOL Q73I4SNYW 0707 'TT Y24eNW



00°0 :Junowy PLOA |BIOL  09°Z8T'/0P'T  :aumowy 1SL7 ([BIOL 70T  :SduL] pabueyd |eiol
80°8.1°8¢ 11101 Je3A
£9°90L 7 L1SMAL ¥3HIO :|P30L pund
£9°90." 17
8757OM d0-0D ALNROD NIMYYM
LT96T 92/90/€0 92/1¢/10 ¥ 7671509 JATHOTHD WNIDTYD /THET “ANI QL7 SWALSAS C33¥ S00SCIFY T £9000-9¢
INAWLSncay
9€950T 9¢/50/¢0 9¢/v7/20 ¥ 10°0 L7S %20¥ 9§9S0T *ANT NI 1Y JTINVILY SOONVILY € 09600-S7
LPSTOME d0-03 AINNOD NTWHYM
00°0000z$ 0330X3 OL LON TT6KSO
PaNULIL0) TYAOWIY MONS 404 3IA¥ISTY ¢000-0000-68¢-55-S¢-1
dAL 3 LOAUT 31eQ 91BQ 9380 dU3 NYD/1BIS  Junowy U0L3d1L42S3q WAIT JOPURA WRYT PI '0'd
0d PLOA/AYD PADY 3L uoL1dLI3S3Q 1UN02DY
1un022y 13bpng Ag 1517 | |18 Wd /0:70
(0T :on dbed dIHSNMOL QT3T4SNVMW

9207 “TT y2Jew



March 11, 2026
02:07 P

MANSFIELD TOWNSHIP

Bill List By Budget Account

Page No: 11

Totals hy Year-Fund

Fund Description Fund Budget Rcvd Budget Held Budget Total ~ Revenue Total G/ Total Total
CURRENT FUND 5-01 13,453.89 0.00 13,453.89 0.00 0.00 13,453.89
CURRENT FUND 6-01 1,364,115.63 0.00  1,364,115.63 0.00 0.00  1,364,115.63
FEDERAL AND STATE GRANT FUND G-02 1,435.00 0.00 1,435.00 0.00 0.00 1,435.00
DOG FUND T-13 121.20 0.00 121.20 0.00 0.00 121.20
DEVELOPER'S ESCROW T-14 3,350.25 0.00 3,350.25 0.00 0.00 3,350.25
OTHER TRUST T-35 24,706.63 0.00 24,706.63 0.00 0.00 24,706.63
Year Total: 28,178.08 0.00 28,178.08 0.00 0.00 28,178.08

Total of A1l Funds: 1,407,182.60 0.00  1,407,182.60 0.00 0.00  1,407,182.60



TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
COUNTY OF WARREN

RESOLUTION 085-2026

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN,
STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AUTHORIZING AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR MOWING &
TRIMMING SERVICES TO WOODLAND LANDSCAPE GROUP LLC

WHEREAS, on January 20, 2026, the Township of Mansfield advertised in the Daily Record for bids for
Mowing and Trimming Services of Township property setting the date for the return of bids as February 11,
2026 at 11:00 am; and

WHEREAS, on February 11, 2026, the Township of Mansfield received three (3) responsive and responsible
bids; and

WHEREAS, Woodland Landscape Group LLC, P.O. Box 530, Chester, NJ 07930 is the lowest responsive and
responsible bidder; and

WHEREAS, the Township Qualified Purchasing Agent and Township Attorney has reviewed the proposal and
recommends the contract for mowing and trimming services be awarded to Woodland Landscape Group LLC
as the lowest responsive and responsible bidder; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:30-5.4, the Temporary Chief Financial Officer certifies the appropriate
funds are requested in the 2026 municipal budget pending adoption with a not to exceed amount of
$43,860.00 in line item appropriation 6-01-26-310-0000-4231.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield, County of
Warren, State of New Jersey, the following:

1. The Township of Mansfield hereby awards a contract to Woodland Landscape Group LLC, P.O. Box
530, Chester, NJ 07930 for mowing and trimming services of Township property in an amount not to
exceed $43,860.00.

2. The term of contract shall be for one (1) year with the option to extend for an additional two (2), one-
year (1) terms if agreed upon by vendor and the Township. The work shall be performed weekly
between April 15" — November 1%t of each year.

3. The Mayor and Township Municipal Clerk be and are hereby authorized and directed to execute a
contract with Woodland Landscape Group LLC in accordance with its bid for said Mowing and
Trimming Services of municipal property.

4. This resolution and contract shall be available for public inspection in the office of the Township
Municipal Clerk.

Motion: Approve Resolution Moved by: ; Seconded by:
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes:
No:
Abstain:
Absent:

I, Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk of the Township of Mansfield, in the County of Warren, State of New Jersey hereby certify this to be a true
copy of the action of the Governing Body, at its' Regular Meeting held on March 11, 2026. Witness my hand this  day of March, 2026.

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk






TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
COUNTY OF WARREN

RESOLUTION 086-2026

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN,
STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF DRIVEWAY
BONDS

WHEREAS, in accordance with Mansfield Township code section 167-11 (Certificate of Occupancy) no
certificate of occupancy shall be issued unless the driveway has been completed in accordance with the
approved plan; and

WHEREAS, notwithstanding anything to the contrary hereinbefore mentioned, a developer may apply for a
certificate of occupancy and defer completion of a driveway in accordance with the approved plan; provided
however, such developer posts a driveway bond with the Township of Mansfield; and

WHEREAS, Ryan Homes, the developer of the properties listed below have submitted the following checks:

Check # 815070 Dated 2/11/26 25 Thomas Knoll Blvd.  $ 1,500.00
Check # 815073 Dated 2/11/26 29 Thomas Knoll Bivd.  $ 1,500.00
Check # 815079 Dated 2/11/26 44 Thomas Knoll Bivd.  $ 1,500.00
Check # 815076 Dated 2/11/26 56 Thomas Knoll Blvd.  $ 1,500.00

WHEREAS, the Township Engineer has recommended the acceptance of said payments.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield, County of
Warren, State of New Jersey that the driveway bonds stated above submitted by Ryan Homes, are hereby
accepted. The Township Clerk is authorized and directed to forward a copy of this resolution to the developer.

Motion: Approve Resolution Moved by: ; Seconded by:
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes:
No:
Abstain:
Absent:

1, Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk of the Township of Mansfield, in the County of Warren, State of New Jersey hereby certify this to be a true
copy of the action of the Governing Body, at its’ Regular Meeting held on March 11, 2026. Witness my hand this  day of March, 2026.

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk



= parm=

- u L I‘I.I.H.- -.q“l " -:Ir.l . -
L A T L S .
g
[ ]
r T L S -
rL u IIIL [ H =N u u u
I. u u _— u u .I
-l r TI u - u -ql
r. III.. u .I. ‘. -
N EEan .I--III I a - u 1-
= = .
- u - L I .-
B C
u u u ‘ .
. = P -
.I u I- I-J I - u = u ‘h.l-
- . - -
(8 e - (R
-
u u



TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
COUNTY OF WARREN

RESOLUTION 087-2026

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN, STATE
OF NEW JERSEY AUTHORIZING SUBMISSION OF MUNICIPAL ALLIANCE GRANT
THROUGH GOVERNOR’S COUNCIL ON SUBSTANCE USE DISORDER FOR FISCAL YEAR 2027

WHEREAS, the Governor’s Council on Substance Use Disorder (GCSUD) established the Municipal Alliances
for the Prevention of Substance Use Disorder in 1989 to educate and engage residents, local government and
law enforcement officials, schools, nonprofit organizations, the faith community, parents, youth and other allies
in efforts to prevent substance use disorder in communities throughout New Jersey; and

WHEREAS, The Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield, County of Warren, State of New Jersey
recognizes that substance use disorder is a serious problem in our society amongst persons of all ages; and
therefore, has an established Municipal Alliance Committee; and

WHEREAS, the Township Committee further recognizes that it is incumbent upon not only public officials but
upon the entire community to take action to prevent substance use disorder in our community; and,

WHEREAS, the Township Committee has applied for funding to the Governor’s Council on Substance Use
Disorder through the County of Warren. -

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township of Mansfield, County of Warren of State of New
Jersey hereby recognizes the following:

1. The Township Committee does hereby authorize submission of a strategic plan for the
Franklin/Mansfield/Washington Municipal Alliance grant for fiscal year 2027 in the amount of:

GCSUD GRANT $2,490.00
Cash Match $ 622.50
in-Kind $1,867.50

2. The Township Committee acknowledges the terms and conditions for administering the Municipal
Alliance grant, including the administrative compliance and audit requirements.

Motion: Approve Resolution Moved by: ; Seconded by:
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes:
No:
Abstain:
Absent:

I, Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk of the Township of Mansfield, in the County of Warren, State of New Jersey hereby certify this to be a true
copy of the action of the Governing Body, at its’ Regular Meeting held on March 11, 2026. Witness my hand this  day of March, 2026,

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk



TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
COUNTY OF WARREN

RESOLUTION 088-2026

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN, STATE
OF NEW JERSEY AUTHORIZING TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE WARREN
COUNTY CULTURAL & HERITAGE AFFAIRS REGULAR MINI- GRANT

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Township Committee are desirous of securing a grant from the Warren County
Cultural & Heritage Affairs Regular Mini-Grant; and

WHEREAS, the Township may request a grant up to $2,000.00, with no required match; and

WHEREAS, funds will be used to offset the cost of Mansfield Township Celebrates America’s 250"
Anniversary Celebration event.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield, in the
County of Warren and State of New Jersey hereby authorizes JoAnn Fascenelli, Assistant CFO to apply for the
Warren County Cultural & Heritage Affairs Regular Mini-Grant in the amount up to $2,000.00, for the Mansfield
Township Celebrates America’s 250" Anniversary Celebration event.

Motion: Approve Resolution Moved by: ; Seconded by:
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes:
No:
Abstain:
Absent:

I, Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk of the Township of Mansfield, in the County of Warren, State of New Jersey hereby certify this to be a true
copy of the action of the Governing Body, at its’ Regular Meeting held on March 11, 2026. Witness my hand this  day of March, 2026.

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk



TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
COUNTY OF WARREN

RESOLUTION 089-2026

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHP OF MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN, STATE
OF NEW JERSEY AUTHORIZING AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR ON CALL ROAD
MAINTENANCE SERVICES TO SALMON BROS.

WHEREAS, Resolution # 224-2025, was adopted at the Township of Mansfield’s regular meeting held
September 10, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the aforementioned resolution authorized to award a contract to Salmon Bros. Inc, for on call road
maintenance services; and

WHEREAS, Resolution number 224-2025, stated the contract to be in effect September 10, 2025 through
December 31, 2025; and

WHEREAS, upon further review of the bid specifications, the Qualified Purchasing Agent has determined that
the contract remains in effect until August, 1, 2026; and

WHEREAS, the Temporary Chief Financial Officer has certified that sufficient funds are available in the capital
fund account number C-04-44-235-0097-1000 with a not to exceed amount of $20,000.00.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield, County of
Warren, and the State of New Jersey, authorize the award of contract effective September 10, 2025 through
August 1, 2026, for on call road maintenance services to Salmon Bros Inc. per the services listed on resolution

224-2025.

Motion: Approve Resolution Moved by: ;. Seconded by:
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes:
No:
Abstain:
Absent:

I, Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk of the Township of Mansfield, in the County of Warren, State of New Jersey hereby certify this to be a true
copy of the action of the Governing Body, at its’ Regular Meeting held on March 11, 2026. Witness my hand this day of March, 2026.

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk



TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
COUNTY OF WARREN

RESOLUTION 090-2026

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHP OF MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN, STATE
OF NEW JERSEY ADOPTING AFFORDABLE HOUSING AFFIRMATIVE
MARKETING PLAN

WHEREAS, in accordance with the New Jersey Uniform Housing Affordability Controls pursuant to N.J.A.C.
5:80-26.1, et seq., the Township of Mansfield is required to adopt an Affirmative Marketing Plan to ensure that
all affordable housing units created, including those created by the rehabilitation of rental housing units within
the Township of Mansfield, are affirmatively marketed to low- and moderate-income households within Housing
Region 2, the COAH Housing Region encompassing the Township of Mansfield.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield ,County of
Warren, State of New Jersey does hereby adopt the attached Affirmative Marketing Plan.

Motion: Approve Resolution Moved by: ; Seconded by:
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes:
No:
Abstain:
Absent:

|, Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk of the Township of Mansfield, in the County of Warren, State of New Jersey hereby certify this to be a true
copy of the action of the Governing Body, at its' Regular Meeting held on March 11, 2026. Witness my hand this = day of March, 2026.

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk



TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
COUNTY OF WARREN

RESOLUTION 091-2026

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN AND
STATE OF NEW JERSEY AUTHORIZING AND ADOPTING THE MARCH 2026
AFFORDABLE HOUSING ADMINISTATIVE AGENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL,
AFFORDABILITY ASSISTANCE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL AND RENTAL HOUSING
REHABILITIATION PROGRAM POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL FOR THE TOWNSHIP OF
MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN.

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Amended Fair Housing Act and the New Jersey Uniform Housing Affordability
Controls (N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.1, et. seq.) the Township of Mansfield is required to adopt all program operating
manuals, which set forth the procedures for administering the programs and their associated controls for
affordable housing units created within the Township of Mansfield; and

WHEREAS, the Township of Mansfield previously adopted the Affordable Housing Administrative Agent Policies
and Procedures, Affordability Assistance Policies and Procedures and Rental Housing Rehabilitation Program
Policies and Procedures Manuals by Resolution 2023- 342 on December 27, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the Township of Mansfield’s Administrative Agent has updated the aforesaid manuals to comply
with the updated N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.1, et. seq. regulations, a copy of which is attached hereto.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield, County of
Warren, State of New Jersey does hereby authorize and adopt the March 2026 Affordable Housing Administrative
Agent Policies and Procedures Manual, Affordability Assistance Policies and Procedures Manual and Rental
Housing Rehabilitation Program Policies and Procedures Manual.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Resolution shall take effect immediately.

Motion: Approve Resolution Moved by: ; Seconded by:
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes:

No:
Abstain:
Absent:

I, Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk of the Township of Mansfield, in the County of Warren, State of New Jersey hereby certify this to be a true
copy of the action of the Governing Body, at its' Regular Meeting held on March 11, 2026. Witness my hand this  day of March, 2026

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk



TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
COUNTY OF WARREN

RESOLUTION 092-2026

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN,
STATE OF NEW JERSEY, APPOINTING A MUNICIPAL HOUSING LIAISON FOR
2026

WHEREAS, under authorization of the New Jersey Fair Housing Act (N.J.S.A. 52:27D-301, et seq.) (‘FHA"),
the Township of Mansfield is implementing a program to provide affordable housing units to low-and moderate-

income households within the Township; and

WHEREAS, the Township’s Affordable Housing Ordinance sets forth the duties of the Municipal Housing
Liaison that requires a Municipal Housing Liaison to oversee the Township of Mansfield’s Affordable Housing
Program in accordance with the requirements of the FHA, N.J.A.C. 5:99-1 et seq. and N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.1 et
seq. (Uniform Housing Affordability Controls or “UHAC"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:93-1 et seq. and UHAC, the Township of Mansfield is required to appoint a
Municipal Housing Liaison for administration of the Township’s Affordable Housing Program to enforce the
requirements of N.J.A.C 5:93-1 et seq. and N.J.A.C. 5:80-26.1 et seq.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield, County of
Warren, State of New Jersey, that the Township of Mansfield hereby appoints JoAnn Fascenelli as the
Municipal Housing Liaison for the administration of the affordability controls of the Township’s housing program
for the year 2026.

Motion: Approve Resolution Moved by: ; Seconded by:
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes:
No:
Abstain:
Absent:

I, Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk of the Township of Mansfield, in the County of Warren, State of New Jersey hereby certify this to be a true
copy of the action of the Governing Body, at its’ Regular Meeting held on March 11, 2026. Witness my hand this  day of March, 2026.

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk



TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
COUNTY OF WARREN

RESOLUTION 093-2026

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHP OF MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN, STATE

OF NEW JERSEY ADOPTING THE FOURTH ROUND AFFORDABLE HOUSING
TRUST FUND SPENDING PLAN BY THE TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN, AND
STATE OF NEW JERSEY.

WHEREAS, on January 23, 2025, Mansfield Township (“Township”) adopted Resolution 2025-70, which
established the Township’s Fourth Round present and prospective need obligations pursuant to the amended
Fair Housing Act (‘FHS”) at N.J.S.A. 52:27D-301 et. seq., per P.L. 2024, c.2; and

WHEREAS , on January 24, 2025, the Township filed a Declaratory Judgment Action (“DJ Action”) in the New
Jersey Superior Court captioned In the Matter of the Township of Mansfield, WRN-L- 47-25, seeking among

other things, compliance certifications; and

WHEREAS, on March 28, 2025, the Court entered an Order fixing the Township’s Fourth Round present need
obligation as 7 and prospective need obligation as 355; and

WHEREAS, the Township of Mansfield’s Planning Board (‘Board”) held a public hearing and voted to adopt
the Township’s Fourth Round Housing Element and Fair Share Plan (“Fourth HEFSP”), addressing the
Township’s prior round obligations, Third Round Obligations and Fourth Round obligations as established; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Amended FHA, a municipality may not spend or commit to spend any affordable
housing development fees collected and deposited into the municipal affordable housing trust fund, without first

obtaining the approval of the expenditure as part of its compliance certification; and

WHEREAS, the Township now seeks to adopt a Fourth Round Spending Plan, which complies with the new
N.J.A.C. 5:99 rules, and outlines how the municipality intends to allocate development fees and other funds,
and how the municipality proposes to expend funds for affordability assistance, especially those funds
earmarked for very low-income affordability assistance;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED on this 11" day of March 2026, that the Township Committee of the
Township of Mansfield, County of Warren, State of New Jersey, hereby adopts the Amended Fourth Round

Affordable Housing Trust Fund Spending Plan.

Motion: Approve Resolution Moved by:  Seconded by:
Vote: Motion carried by roll call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes:
No:
Abstain:
Absent:

al Clerk of the Township of Mansfield, in the County of Warren, State of New Jersey hereby certify this to be a true

1, Wendy Barras, Township Municip
day of March, 2026

copy of the action of the Governing Body, at its’ Regular Meeting held on March 11, 2026. Witness my hand this

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk



TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD
COUNTY OF WARREN

RESOLUTION 094-2026

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MANSFIELD, COUNTY OF WARREN,
STATE OF NEW JERSEY AUTHORIZING EXECUTIVE SESSION OF
THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

WHEREAS, the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield is authorized, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 10:4-12
to exclude the public from that portion of this meeting for purposes of discussing specific matters as permitted
by N.J.S.A. 10:4-12; and,

WHEREAS, the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield intends to discuss certain matters which
are deemed confidential pursuant to N.J.S.A. 10:4-12, in Executive Session; and

WHEREAS, at this time the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield cannot determine the time
when the discussion to be held in Executive Session will be made public, but will disclose the minutes of the
Executive Session when the need for confidentiality no longer exists.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield, County of
Warren, State of New Jersey, that this meeting shall be adjourned to an Executive Session and the public will
excluded in order that the Township Committee of the Township of Mansfield may discuss the items listed
below:

Attorney Client Privilege
Business and Rental Unit Registration — P.L. 2022, c. 92

Motion: Approve Resolution Moved by: ; Seconded by:
Vote: Motion carried by roli call vote (Summary: Yes=)

Yes:
No:
Abstain:
Absent:

I, Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk of the Township of Mansfield, in the County of Warren, State of New Jersey hereby certify this o be a true
copy of the action of the Governing Body, at its' Regular Meeting held on March 11, 2026. Witness my hand this  day of March, 2026

Wendy Barras, Township Municipal Clerk



